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—  Baseline Survey on Public Attitudes towards Persons with a Disability 2010

—  Study on Equal Learning Opportunities for Students with Disabilities
under the Integrated Education System

—  Study on Racial Encounters and Discrimination Experienced by South
Asians (formerly named “In-depth Study on Racial Encounters and
Experience in Discrimination”)
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—  Exploratory Study on Gender Stereotyping and Its Impacts on Male
Gender

—  Equal Opportunities Awareness Survey 2012
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We as ONE

As another year comes to a close, | look back with gratitude
at what we have accomplished. It has been a busy and
challenging, yet fruitful year. Though many hurdles still
lie ahead, the Equal Opportunities Commission’s (EOC)
commitment to building an inclusive Hong Kong is
unwavering.

We remain committed to providing redress under the existing
legislation for those aggrieved by discrimination. We received
over 16,000 enquiries this year — a 22 percent increase from
the previous year, and handled over 1,000 complaints. We
also extended legal assistance to 24 complainants, marking
an 85 percent jump from last year. With our help, HK$2.8
million in monetary compensation was secured, along with
other remedies.

Over the past couple of years, the EOC has been paying close
attention to the issues of accessibility and rights of persons
with disabilities, as well as equal education opportunities for
ethnic minorities. Our objective is to raise public awareness
on the difficulties faced by these communities and on the
valuable contributions they can make if the playing field
can be leveled. We are delighted to see some of our efforts
bearing fruit.
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Following up on the EOC’s recommendations to improve
and enhance access for persons with disabilities in its Formal
Investigation Report published in June 2010, the Government
has confirmed that 90% of the 3,500 improvement projects
in Government premises had been completed by June 2012.
In addition, a new scheme to install passenger lifts at no less
than 230 public locations has also been announced in August
to provide a universally accessible environment for all.

The Revised Code of Practice on Employment under the
Disability Discrimination Ordinance came into effect in June
2011. The revision, undertaken with full consultation with key
stakeholders and based on about 15 years of enforcement
experience, provides practical guidance to facilitate the
elimination of disability discrimination from the workplace.

One month later in July, our Working Group on Education for
Ethnic Minorities released its Report, with recommendations
on enhancing equal education opportunity for all. The
initiative has received wide support from the community,
including a Motion passed by the Legislative Council in
February 2012.

During the year, we broke new frontiers in
our research initiatives, attempting to shed
light on previously little-discussed topics such
as the impact of gender stereotypes on Hong
Kong's men, and the racial encounters and
discrimination experienced by South Asians.
The gathered data is useful in focusing our
advocacy efforts.
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As we look at our achievements, we have also been humbled
by the recognition we have received. In particular, Members
of our Board, who have unstintingly given their time and
energy to further the Commission’s cause, were recognised
when the EOC was named a winner of the Directors of the
Year Award from the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. | have
been deeply inspired by their leadership and dedication.

| would also like to express my heartfelt thanks to the
Commission’s staff, who have given me their untiring support
throughout my tenure and fought hard for a fairer society for
all.

I am confident that Hong Kong is on the right track to
advancing equal opportunities for everyone. The EOC looks
forward to continuing our rewarding cooperation with our
stakeholders as we work towards fostering an inclusive
community — We as One.

o D= .

Lam Woon-kwong, GBS, JP
Chairperson
Equal Opportunities Commission
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Highlights of the Year

1. T#EKE Achievements

RZBRANLEUEH

$2,800,000:

FRRR TN R E
aout HK$2,800,000 no/
secured' in compensation for 64 /0 Successful
complainants conciliation rate

=%716,800Esz5HR

EI@TE%@J‘ IOOO$T§EJ?

16,800 enquiries answered and
over 1:000 complaints handled

J L w,

A

78,000,

RIZE T IR0 A8 G
78:000 people

visited our website
per month on
average

RS
HK$1,570,000
A& Bh63TaM At BRI E F EFHE AL

More than H K$1 ,570,000

granted to fund 63 community projects
to promote equal opportunities

BROMEEHE TIENERSE - S0% =
SRAGHEDEIFRERHER

Release of the Report of the
Working Group on Education
for Ethnic Minorities, whose
recommendations for action were
supported by a motion passed by the Legislative Council

8 Equal Opportunities Commission P E#EEE S
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_6 awards won IOca"y and
internationally o our work
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71,000
) 4 sl 7,000 e MBEBET FER
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- ¥ “§ = More than 47,000 employers, 71 :000
'& ( ’*y" . employees and interested parties students watched
4 ( "l{g received our training our EO plays
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BRI IR REE SIMAERRESIENTE [ REUARERE
1| ]' ZIK BITT 2B E « 10EEB/MET R E AR
12 R BBES
X BRIET5ES 2 public seminars, 10 focus groups and 9
Revised individual interviews organised for the project
Code of Practice on “Exploratory Study on Gender Stereotyping
Employment under the and Its Impacts on Male Gender”
Disability Discrimination J
Ordinance in effect,
with an easy-read guide )
published BREW ()ER 2 BEERMEREHRIEARRTL QRREE
RATRENERFAENER
Release of findings of (1) the In-
Depth Study on Racial Encounters and
Experience in Discrimination, and (2)
the Baseline Survey on Public Attitudes
towards Persons with a Disability
. J U
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2. EE=EIE K T4 Events and Actions
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BHANERERNERE LSS
(GEEFEEHK2011)  FHEE
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Broadcast of “A Mission for Equal
Opportunities 2011", the EOC's TV
docu-drama series on discrimination
issues, with an average of 1M
viewers per episode.

572011

6/2011

TR EERTIE ) ERSETRE
NEREEH  BREARAER

|
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“ A small step for many,
a huge barrier for others.”

The EOC’s Working Group on
Access met with the Secretary
for Labour and Welfare to
advocate for greater accessibility

in publicly accessible premises.

B[ BAZE? EEWHE ? IARANE - RIS TACHEE -
Mg T HEREEBPXAREMRFHFE R OETHCERIEE K&
HYUSUNRERTMEMAFTINER —F5 -

CEREAR GO RIBE R TRIMEFTATIRE - WHR/NHAERK -

A public seminar on the changing role of men entitled “Men in
Pain? Where is the Pain?” organised. This seminar was a part of
the EOC-commissioned project, “Exploratory Study on Gender
Stereotyping and Its Impacts on
Male Gender”, undertaken by the
Gender Research Centre of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Revised Code of Practice on
Employment under the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance came
into effect.

10 Equal Opportunities Commission P& HEZEE S
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Release of the Report
of the Working Group
on Education for
Ethnic Minorities, with
recommendations
on enhancing equal
education opportunity
for ethnic minority
students.

Sharing session on the
Impact on Employees
with Disabilities under
the Minimum Wage
Ordinance organised.
“Equal Opportunities
Day”, a community

F W K @

event to promote
equality and inclusion,
held in Tuen Mun.
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BRI REL AT ERE RE e BUTRBIREBAFENEANTE  BERMFNE] - AR
E’Uiﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁ(ﬁﬁ By TAERRI RO AR AR
Launch of new online training o HhCERBERGIERERTRIMNETAEKEZES!) -
module on equal opportunities e “A Better Solution to Workplace Disability Issues — A Case
for preschoolers. Analysis,” a seminar on preventing disability discrimination
in the workplace held.
e Easy Read Guide to

On-line Tralnlng Module
On Equal Opportunities

the revised Code of
Practice on Employment
under the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance
published.

TR T MENEEZARDRE - RIFLEKREINIER o
TRt AR TERENERABIARIER] -

An out of court settlement on behalf of an elderly woman with
mobility difficulties successfully negotiated by the EOC.

Launch of “A World of Colours”, the EOC’s resource webpage on
racial equality issues.

FRERESE - 3 o THEH
S B i B 0070 1 B
EHEHREE v & BOAHE
Rz ERE @K 23 E
ORE - H#E 4 B
BREE . 2 [ 72 75 B
RimiEfskh t—R
MEERIE o 2

AR

Year-long poster advertisements and roving
3-D exhibitions at the MTR stations launched
to promote racial equality and access for all as
well as to combat sexual harassment.

e Launch of the EOC’s new radio
segment, “On a Clear Day — If There
is NO DISCRIMINATION, " produced in
collaboration with Commercial Radio.

Annual Report 2011/12 5
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Highlights of the Year

1/2012 3/2012

s FTREREEGHLFERRBRELER A  IEEMNELR s FHREAM(EHEEIEA
2015/16F K Z AT S R REEA - THTE R HERE RIAR L

e The EOC received written - O Bl E
assurance from the Secretary 3 3 W | o TRerEELEARTEAN
for Transport and Housing BERRMFAERBAR] -
that all franchised buses will NREEmREFERENR
be wheelchair-accessible by o
2015/16. o THERITIGRAIENH
RBREIDZE - SwE
A TER AR BRGE
EH R PRE - WERFT IR A &

[ B 1 25 3238 R 765 /O K R
2/2012 S

e g s N R * Findings of the EOC’s “Stud
« TESHERADE  RARNEESREESENAENE - e
IR T e (D BREHRE TIEMERE )RR E AEE o Discrimination Exoerienced b
o TREIFHEIASNEREA L EERBE LR MIEE NP y
v Aoy AL e A South Asians” announced.
SHE®  RIEBARHE - e A new seament “Anti-
e Members of the Legislative Council passed a motion ) ST g _
. . : discrimination News
urging the Government to address the issue of education _
S , Weekly” on Commercial
for ethnic minority students and follow up on the EOC's Radio t H ol
recommendations from the Report of the Working Group adio to en‘ ance public
. o understanding on equal
on Education for Ethnic Minorities. tunities | hed
e The EOC Chairperson advocated the concept of ?EpOEOL?I e agn;e .h ,
[ ]
Universal Design to Members of the Legislative Council’s © organisedia sharing

. . session on accessible public
Subcommittee on Improving , )
. transport services to review
Barrier Free Access and

. : the existing challenges faced
Facilities for Persons with g. , g
. by people with disabilities and
Disabilities.
explore the way forward.
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¥ M T/ERFEE Recognition for Our Work

THREREREBESZRPET o RFBAZENN [HHESR
#2]  URBTREELRZTESNEFTERREFREM o

The EOC received the Directors of the Year Award in the category of
Statutory/Non-profit-distributing Organisation Boards in recognition of
excellence in corporate governance and professionalism of the Boards of
Directors.

FHE201FEEE TR hkABIEE
2 QRPN PEBRRE -

The EOC's website was awarded a
Merit Prize in the 2011 Top 10.hk
Website Competition for the category
of SME Group.

FeABEREATAENER (EIEBARZH) &
EIEEE BISS A BB -

The EOC’'s documentary on people
with hearing impairment, Between
Hearing and Not Hearing, selected

for screening at the United Nations
Enable Film Festival.

EF [Z7T - HEpl /&
B TS ER - 5 BB
KERKBEBRFHRAREFE
FRELE -

The last EOC Annual Report,
under the theme “We As
One”, received Honors
Awards in the International
MERCURY Awards as well as

the ARC Awards.

c—
ARC ARG rds

EXCELLENCE AWARDS

€ MERCURY

FieEEEEAMSBENSRE
Bl CGERFEER) - Hh—F&K
ERRE L Re -

An episode of EOC TV Docu-
drama series, “A Mission for Equal
Opportunities,” co-produced by
RTHK, awarded the Gold Prize at the
International Aurora Awards.

FILERE o

. - w2011/12
caringorganisation
Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

S EMBHIERE

THEEEEHLERBEBETER
20117125 [RILREEIE] #E -

The EOC named a Caring Organisation
for the year 2011/12 by the Hong Kong

= Council of Social Service.
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About the EOC
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%zt e @ We as One

“Friendship knows no barriers.”

To create a pluralistic and inclusive society free of
discrimination, with no barriers to equal opportunity.

We do this by:

e establishing partnerships with all sectors in the community;

e promoting awareness, understanding, and acceptance of
diversity and equal opportunities;

e providing education to prevent discrimination;

e enforcing compliance with provisions in the anti-discrimination
legislation; and

e providing access to redress for discrimination.

The EOC is a statutory body set up in 1996 to implement
the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (SDO), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (DDO), the Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance (FSDO) and the Race Discrimination
Ordinance (RDO).

Annual Report 2011/12 5



About the EOC

o BUARIR PO G SIS AR IR I VE I BV 2 B 2 Investigate complaints lodged under the four anti-

1T3RE - WexEIE 7 FRRR AR R4 T discrimination ordinances and encourage conciliation
o REEATRMEES between parties in dispute;
o ELRIEGMTSHENEEEREBE o Provide legal assistance to aggrieved persons;
o HTHBEREBMEHRER e Promote anti-discrimination and equal opportunity values
o IREDAGINTIRMEIESI and policies;
o BHERA N TEREHMNZEREIT o Develop educational programmes and resources;

e e Review legislation and provide guidelines; and

e Conduct research on issues relevant to discrimination and
equal opportunities.

W
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FFHEEE Organisational Values

EEEE
B HEMERE K178
MAREE  WEFHESEM
SRR e e
Accountability
We will be accountable for
our decisions and actions to
the public and will submit
ourselves to whatever
scrutiny as appropriate.

By
BFISRREDINRTE - B
BEMITE - NERMEM
BhSE &2
Independence
We will act freely and
independently within the
confines of the law and will
not be subject to undue
influence or pressure.

FEHE
BiE T EHE
[RAE 88
Equality
SRE We will be at the

BTG IAEIE - SRz forefront to uphold
the principle of equal

RS R RIRTS - R

ERIER opportunities.
Sensitivity

We will be courteous,

sensitive, and helpful to

our clients and will do

away with unnecessary
bureaucracy.

/I'_\\ 3z

BMEUAATAENERFIT

[RIEARSER - VEH IEwEEy # BT
Fairness

We will implement fair and

PVEES impartial procedures and

BAPIER TIERE - WA act with sound judgment
BEENEEEAER in administering the anti-
Efficiency discrimination legislation.

We will carry out
our functions and
responsibilities with
efficiency and will use
our resources efficiently,
effectively, and responsibly.

BHMEEEE  UHEES
Integrity

We will respect the truth

and act with integrity.

ZHE
BPRFESEER  AMETER
BRI TIEMRIEE
Transparency
We will operate with a high
degree of transparency to
enable the public to better
understand our work and
performance.

&
BIMISEEPTEE -
FEERIBRHEE

Energy
We will be energetic and
proactive in pursuing issues
of discrimination.

Annual Report 2011/12 % |/



Pregnancy discrimination is unlawful.




Corporate Governance
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The current Board is comprised of a Chairperson and 16 other
Members, all appointed by the Chief Executive of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. They represent a balance
of background and expertise including women, persons with
disabilities, ethnic minorities, employment groups, social
service sector, legal professionals, accounting professionals,
academics, and the community at large. With their devotion
and contribution to all aspects of the EOC’s work, and their
enthusiasm for the promotion of equal opportunities, the
EOC’s work has gained new momentum.

FERSZEEPSENEAMRE(BE201263H31R8)

Organisational Structure of the Equal Opportunities Commission (as at 31 March 2012)

FEREEEEEREES

Board of the Equal Opportunities Commission J

NEY L E T B 7S He2ENEE R AR ST
=H/E H55/4 =E/)E =H/A
Legal and Administration B Community Policy and
Complaints and Chairperson Participation Research
Committee Finance and Publicity Committee
Committee Committee
REIE SR R BRA B RATHR B E RS Bk R FE 4
4aEs EREE smEs FE B
Operations Legal Service Planning & Corporate Policy &
Division Division Administration Communications & Research Unit
Director Chief Legal Division Training Unit Head
Counsel Director Head

Annual Report 2011/12 5k



Corporate Governance

Mr LAM Woon-kwong,
GBS, JP

FHEES
EOC Members

RESLL

Ms CHAN Ka-mun,
Carmen, JP

TRYZE - PHEEREEER
P RBRERE

Chief Principal of Tivoli
Nursery, Kindergarten and
International Playschool

PREFHZ L

Ms CHAN Man-ki,
Maggie

PR S HLZANTT — 22AD
AR/ NAEMITHEAE
BAIREEEE
Principal, CMK Lawyers
Founding President, The

Small and Medium Law Firms

Association of Hong Kong

District Councillor, Wong Tai

Sin District Council

Equal Opportunities Commission SFE#E2ZE =

HEBEzL

Ms CHIU Lai-kuen,
Susanna
MEER(PE)BERAARES
BEgIAgEE

B ﬁE = quEﬂi%)?&X/ﬁWJ@
BlexE

Director, Li & Fung
Development (China) Ltd.

Vice President, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

Founding President, Institute of
Accountants Exchange

BRRLZE

Ms CHOI Hing-shi, MH
AEAIgMEee® T ABERR
TR ES

Executive Director, Hong Kong
Federation of Trade Unions

Workers’ Medical Clinics

BRERE

The Honourable FUNG Kin-
kee, Frederick, SBS, JP
A7~ =

ARFEEEHE

Rt gRg+HOER
Member, Legislative Council
Member, Sham Shui Po District
Counil

Chairman, The Hong Kong
Association for Democracy and
People’s Livelihood Social Service
Centre

AEHBL

Dr KOONG May-kay,

Maggie

HENEHREEHHER -

JBILHE % F R ERER K

FREBREEEEE
REZSEE

Chief-Principal, Victoria Nurseries

& Kindergartens and Victoria

Shanghai Academy

Member of the Women'’s

Commission

Member of the Family Council

TRERE

Mr LEE Luen-fai
FEEAMEZRRER AR
NHEBLRE

Director of Public Affairs,
Sun Hung Kai Properties Ltd.



EARREE
Mr LUI Tim-leung, Tim,
BBS, JP
BAREERUKE TRV ST
GEAREBA
BEAEEREEER
Accountant and Partner,
PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong
Kong

President, Hong Kong
Professionals Advancement
Association

B ST E

Mr Amirali Bakirali

NASIR, JP

2RD
RIERARATTRINEA
Anjumane Burhani Hong
Kong Dawoodi Bohra
Association ZIEHE
Solicitor

Founder of Nasirs Solicitors
Hon Secretary of Anjumane
Burhani Hong Kong Dawoodi
Bohra Association

HElL L

Ms NG Wing-mui,
Winnie

NEERTES
KABESESRIER
BERRETESEEEE
Director, Kowloon Motor Bus
Deputy Chairman, RoadShow
Council Member, Better
Hong Kong Foundation

Mr Zaman Minhas
QAMAR
AEEBRERFBEeeR
EEEEIMERETFE
BEERHMEAESREERR
&

President, International Islamic
Society

President, The Pakistan
Association of Hong Kong Ltd
Hon Secretary, The Incorporated
Trustees of the Islamic
Community Fund of Hong Kong

CRZEL

Dr TSANG Kit-man, Sandra
BEARBHETERMLEEITR
BRATENEIZE

& TIENR R AN KB A
ZEEKE
HERMERAEEENE
Department Head & Associate
Professor, Department of Social
Work & Social Adminstration,
The University of Hong Kong
Member, Advisory Committee
on Social Work Training and
Manpower Planning

Member, Social Welfare
Advisory Committee (SWAC)

HEREE

The Honourable

TSE Wai-chun, Paul
SUEE#E
FHEEEITEIIARERA
Member, Legislative Council
Founder and Partner of

Paul W Tse Solicitors

#H kiR gL

Dr TSE Wing-ling, John,
MH

EEMTAREEBLE
B R EIHX

Associate Professor,
Department of Applied
Social Studies, City University
of Hong Kong

BERRZT

Ms WONG Ka-ling, Garling
BEALEHESERGAE
IR EREMBERR AR
EEEE

Honorary Treasurer,
Association of Women with
Disabilities Hong Kong
Assistant to Director,

FH Rehabilitation Products
Manufacturing Company
Limited

s
BEOREEE
Mr YIP Siu-hong, Nelson,
MH

PR¥YEZEECZE

B 25 4R RFE A 590 A B 2
JREEGEEB
HERNBEBRERNEE
ZEEXE8

Member of the Committee

on the Promotion of Civic
Education

Member of the Committee

on Vocational Training for
People with Disabilities of the
Vocational Training Council
Member of the Lump Sum
Grant Steering Committee of
the Social Welfare Department
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E5/4E Committees
THeEREESETANEZRSE /)N  Under the EOC Board, there are four committees appointed
# DREETHENTRER - to pursue the goals of the Commission.

TE R EEE /A Administration and Finance Committee (A&FC)

THREMBEENESERTEZ R BRALGESHTHENER  RE - BEEXRBFENFHR : KZBEEE
SMREMPINER REEBRAANEINASZER @ ARt AFHZEMI TS -

The A&FC holds meetings every three months, and its responsibilities include reviewing the EOC's
budget, accounts, operational performances, and the annual report; setting up tender boards and
approving their recommendations; deciding on personnel matters related to staff employed on the
Directorate pay scale; and reviewing staffing and administrative policies.

HtEz2EREEEE /N Communlty Participation and Publicity Committee (CPPC)

HeLEREEFEENMEFRITEE R AERINRESE #HE  FEARNGESL2ESTEREERLMN
FEHWME - BLEBUT - FEBFAR - ?ﬁ/_{ SRFHMENAERER - BB TR EZIRE A TETHH
RAHBIER  MERM Y e TIEACIE -

The CPPC holds meetings every three months, and is responsible for advising and receiving reports on
measures related to strengthening publicity, education, media relations, and community participation;
providing advice on measures to connect with organisations, both government and non-government,
as well as concern groups; considering and approving assistance for research or educational projects
undertaken by other persons; and monitoring the community’s response to the work of the EOC.

EERRFEE /DA Legal and Complaints Committee (LCC)

FERRKRFEEPESMARTER R AEFRBREBEEREENKEREF AN AR - EXBAE - EZRE
BN ERBNAITRAREER - WIEHERMEITE o I EZRERFEENEX SR EXAENEFT
IR 50 5 BRI H i -

The LCC holds meetings every two months, and is responsible for a variety of activities including
providing advice, monitoring and evaluating conciliation, formal investigations, applications for legal
assistance, and enforcement notices. In addition, the LCC makes recommendations on issues relating to
formal investigations and on proposals for amending the four anti-discrimination ordinances.

BUR KRB E/)ME Policy and Research Committee (PARC)

HERNMAREE NMEEMARITEE R BEWS FTERSNBRLARIE  BRERBRSTEAEZNE
SIREER - SRBIEHEME aJII%KMEIEE ; ﬁ*ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂl”ﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%&% ®

The PARC holds meetings every two months, and is responsible for directing the EOC’s policy and
research efforts, which include advising on policy analysis/advocacy; considering and approving research
and training modules; and evaluating policy and research reports.

Equal Opportunities Commission P& EE S



FERSZESVEERTPMAREZEN T (BE201253A318) :
Memberships of the four committees (as of 31 March 2012) are as follows:

HERMEREEE
FEERE(BEAN)
RS E(RIARA)
ReHZt+
BB+
LEZEL
AHERZEE
BN it
MRS E

Legal and Complaints Committee

Mr LEE Luen-fai (Convenor)

Mr Amirali Bakirali NASIR, JP (Deputy Convenor)
Ms CHAN Man-ki, Maggie

Ms CHOI Hing-shi, MH

Dr TSANG Kit-man, Sandra

The Hon TSE Wai-chun, Paul

Mr YIP Siu-hong, Nelson, MH

Mr LAM Woon-kwong, GBS, JP

HBRLE(BEA)
REszt(BIAEA)
FEYESTL
EAREE
EipN
M SEE

Ms CHIU Lai-kuen, Susanna (Convenor)

Ms CHAN Ka-mun, Carmen, JP (Deputy Convenor)
Mr LEE Luen-fai

Mr LUI Tim-leung, Tim, BBS, JP

Dr TSE Wing-ling, John, MH

Mr LAM Woon-kwong, GBS, JP

BERKRL(BEA)
E5BLZL(BRIAREA)
FLEHE L
ERREE
th&gat
HEEZER
AOKEREL

MBI SEE
EREFLL(BEERS)
HEREEE(BRER)
FxERECEEERE)

Ms WONG Ka-ling, Garling (Convenor)

Ms CHOI Hing-shi, MH (Deputy Convenor)
Dr KOONG May-kay, Maggie

Mr LUI Tim-leung, Tim, BBS, JP

Ms NG Wing-mui, Winnie

The Hon TSE Wai-chun, Paul

Dr TSE Wing-ling, John, MH

Mr LAM Woon-kwong, GBS, JP

Ms CHEUNG Kwan-fong (Co-opted Member)
Mr CHONG Chan-yau (Co-opted Member)
Mr CHOW Wing-hong, Alvin (Co-opted Member)

BREZRE(BEAN)
AkiE L (BIBEA)
PREH R L
HEHEL
ZRHERA S A
mRIKKL

B OREE

Mr Zaman Minhas QAMAR
RIS e
PRERZ T (EEEE)
EHEXREGEEES)
2N L (EEEE)

The Hon FUNG Kin-kee, Frederick (Convenor)
Dr TSE Wing-ling, John, MH (Deputy Convenor)
Ms CHAN Ka-mun, Carmen, JP

Dr KOONG May-kay, Maggie

Mr Amirali Bakirali NASIR, JP

Ms WONG Ka-ling, Garling

Mr YIP Siu-hong, Nelson, MH

Mr Zaman Minhas QAMAR AR S A AR RE - 5
Mr LAM Woon-kwong, GBS, JP B e

Ms CHAN Mei-kit, Maggie (Co-opted Member) For complete terms of reference of the above
Mr Behzad MIRZAEI (Co-opted Member) four committees, please refer to the EOC website:
Ms Agnes LAU (Co-opted Member)

www.eoc.org.hk/eoc/graphicsfolder/

showcontent.aspx?content=organization
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FHREEHRENSBNHFECR(BE201263H310)

Attendance Record of Regular and Special EOC Meetings (up to 31 March 2012)

RS FERHBIAB78% Overall attendance was over 78%

MRS L (EFE)

! Mr LAM Woon-kwong, GBS, JP (Chairperson) v

5 PR e TRFE
Ms CHAN Ka-mun, Carmen, JP Abs.

, meBLt

. . v

Ms CHAN Man-ki, Maggie

4 HERZT %
Ms CHIU Lai-Kuen, Susanna

5 BEARR T v
Ms CHOI Hing-shi, MH

6 HiREZEE v
The Hon FUNG Kin-kee, Frederick, SBS, JP

7 FLEHET %
Dr KOONG May-kay, Maggie
RGBS A

E Mr LEE Luen-fai v

9 ERREAE v
Mr LUI Tim-leung, Tim, BBS, JP

10 RAERF S A v
Mr Amirali Bakirali NASIR, JP

At .
Ms NG Wing-mui, Winnie

12 Mr Zaman Minhas QAMAR v

13 BREE L v
Dr TSANG Kit-man, Sandra
iR

14 The Hon TSE Wai-chun, Paul v

15 Bk RIE L

N v

Dr TSE Wing-ling, John, MH

16 ERKXT v
Ms WONG Ka-ling, Garling
i /J\><

, EomEE y

Mr YIP Siu-hong, Nelson, MH

* Abs. = Absent

A 2B (F125R) FREE R/ MET ISR ik

Attendance Record of Regular EOC Committee Meetings is at Appendix 1 (see page 125)

i AREBEEMANESE WERSRTEERRT -
Note: A reminder is issued to Members who have been absent for two consecutive meetings.

Equal Opportunities Commission P& EE S
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In November 2011, the EOC received the Directors of the
Year Award in the category of Boards of Statutory/Non-profit-
distributing Organisations. The annual award, organised by
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors (HKloD), recognised the
excellence in corporate governance and professionalism of
the Commission’s Board of Directors, which has contributed
to the gradual improvement in equal opportunities in
everyday life.

The EOC Chairperson, Mr. Lam Woon-kwong, was invited by
the HKloD to share the EOC Board’s experience in corporate
governance as well as the Commission’s initiatives in pursuing
continuous professional development for its directors at the
Launch Reception of the Directors of the Year Awards 2012
in June. Over 120 guests from different industries and sectors
attended the event.

In December 2011, the EOC's Annual Report, with the
theme, “We as ONE"”, was named an Honors Award recipient
at the ARC Awards. The ARC (“Annual Report Competition”)
Awards is an international, independent awards organisation
dedicated to honoring innovation and creativity in the
communications fields. In 2011, there were 21,000 entries
from 31 countries, with only one recipient each of a Gold,
Silver, Bronze, and Honors Award per category. This is the
second international award the EOC has received for the
Annual Report.

Annual Report 2011/12 G5k
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Equal Opportunities Commission P& EE S

Although subvented by the Hong Kong Government,
the EOC operates independently in carrying out its tasks
and duties. As per Section 63(7) of the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, the EOC “shall not be regarded as a servant or
agent of the Government or as enjoying any status, immunity
or privilege of the Government”. Accordingly, the EOC has
autonomy over the management and control of its activities
and budget. At the same time, it has the responsibility to
ensure that its operational, administrative, and management
systems and practices reflect the most effective and prudent
use of government subventions.

The framework for the working relationship between the
Government and the EOC is laid out in the Memorandum
of Administrative Arrangements (MAA). The provisions of
the MAA are based on the principle that the EOC should
have autonomy and flexibility in how to use its funds.
The EOC holds regular progress review meetings with the
Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau (CMAB), the focal
point of contact between the Government and the EOC. The
EOC also provides monthly expenditure reports and audited
accounts, as well as quarterly progress review reports, on its
financial position and operational performances to the CMAB
for its review.

The EOC was invited by the Government of Shunde, China
to share the Commission’s experience on its operations and
its relationship with the government as a statutory body. The
Government of Shunde started comprehensive reforms on
its provision of public services in 2011, with a proposal to set
up statutory organisations to provide such services. Over 100
leading officials of Shunde attended the sharing session.
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The EOC values transparency as a key characteristic of good
corporate governance, and has endeavoured to provide
information relating to our performance and operations in
an open manner to the public and our stakeholders. We hold
regular press briefings to provide timely information. The
minutes of the EOC meetings can be found on our website,
in addition to our press statements, press releases, and
other publications including our annual report. To advance a
corporate culture of openness, the EOC voluntarily discloses
the attendance records of EOC meetings. We also report
updates on our operations regularly through channels such
as our website, our printed newsletters, and electronic news.
Over 80,000 copies of each issue of our printed newsletters
are widely distributed to the public. In addition, each issue of
the EOC e-News is sent by email to around 4,500 recipients,
including Members of the Executive Council and Legislative
Council, District Councillors, Consulates, non-government
organisations, concern groups, media organisations, ethnic
minority groups, schools, and other relevant stakeholders.

As a statutory body which deals with and provides services
to the public, good reputation and standing is extremely
important. This reputation and standing is dependent upon,
and reflected through, the EOC’s employees. The EOC staff
members are required to comply with a Code of Conduct,
which sets out the standard of acceptable professional
behaviour, relevant legal obligations, and guidelines on
issues such as confidentiality and handling complaints. All
EOC staff members are briefed on the Code upon
their commencement of duties at the EOC, and
may access the document with ease through
the EOC’s intranet at any time. In addition, the
EOC has adopted the two-tier reporting system
on declaration of interest requirement when
applicable.
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Equal Opportunities Commission P& EE S

The EOC, as an independent and statutory organisation,
applies the “moderate and conservative principle” when
spending public money. The procurement process within the
EOC is guided by the Procurement of Stores and Services
Manual (PSSM). The PSSM was endorsed by the EOC Board
after consideration by the Working Group composed of EOC
Board Members.

The EOC endeavours to ensure that the purchasing process
is carried out in a competitive and equitable manner while
keeping the process transparent and accountable. All users
and staff members responsible for the purchase ensure that
the purchases represent value for money by focusing on
three main aspects of performance — economy (minimising
cost), efficiency (improving productivity), and effectiveness
(achieving objectives).

The EOC has in place a structure of internal controls, with the
goal of promoting operational efficiency, ensuring adherence
to the policies in place, and assessing their effectiveness.
The EOC has created procedure manuals for activities
related to the performance of our duties, maintains prudent
financial management, and undertakes cost reduction
measures whenever possible. The EOC considers that the
current mechanism is both sufficient and transparent for the
purposes of internal control.

The EOC staff members meet frequently within their
respective divisions/units to make certain that ideas and
issues relating to the performance of duties are effectively
and promptly handled. Senior staff meetings ensure that
the management are regularly updated on any arising
concern across the Commission and facilitate synergy across
the divisions/units. Quarterly reports by respective EOC
Committees are made to keep the EOC Board abreast of
developments.
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The Administration and Finance Committee (A&FC) is in
charge of reviewing the EOC's financial information and
operational performance. The A&FC reviews the EOC’s draft
annual budget before submission to the EOC Board, the
quarterly progress review reports, the quarterly financial
statements, and the position of its fixed assets as at the fiscal
year end. The EOC Board reviews the EOC’s draft annual
budget, the half-yearly reports on its financial position, and
endorses the audited financial statements.

KPMG is the EOC’s external auditor for the financial year
2011/12. Their appointment was in accordance with Section
18 of Schedule 6 to the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (SDO).
Although it is an independent statutory body, the EOC is
subject to regular reporting and provision of information to
its Controlling Officer, the CMAB, as laid out by the MAA.
The Permanent Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland
Affairs (PFSCMA) has unhindered access to the records and
accounts of the EOC as the Controlling Officer, but this does
not include personal data pertaining to the EOC’s complaint
cases or privileged matters as defined and/or governed by the
rule of law. The EOC is obliged to explain to the PSCMA any
matters relating to the receipt, expenditure, or custody of any
money derived from the subvention.

In addition, the Director of Audit may, in respect of any
financial year, conduct an examination into the economy,
efficiency, and effectiveness with which the EOC has
expended its resources in performing its functions and
exercising its powers. The Director of Audit has a right of
access to the EOC’s records and documents as he considers
reasonably necessary.
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Equal Opportunities Commission P& EE S

The EOC is committed to continuously improving our
performance. The EOC has invited the Efficiency Unit
of the Hong Kong Government to review its complaint
handling procedures with a view to improving efficiency and
effectiveness as well as enhancing customer satisfaction.
The review was completed in June 2011 and a number of
recommendations were made including (a) using fast-track
conciliation, i.e. the use of early conciliation as a tool for
settling discrimination disputes before embarking on full
investigations. This method is more informal and flexible,
and it can be conducted at any stage before or during the
process of investigation provided the parties involved agree;
(b) ensuring the cost-effectiveness of investigations, i.e. to
confine the purpose of investigation to decide on whether
the case should proceed to conciliation or be discontinued, as
well as to seek early legal advice for complicated complaint
cases in order to map out the direction of the investigation;
(c) conducting customer satisfaction survey. The EOC has
implemented these recommendations to further strengthen
its services.

Internally, the EOC conducts continuous reviews of its
guidelines and manuals, such as the Internal Operating
Procedures on Handling Complaints and Enquiries, the
Human Resources and Administration Manual (HRAM), and
the Procurement of Stores and Services Manual (PSSM). The
PSSM has incorporated suggestions from the Independent
Commission Against Corruption. In addition, the PSSM also
adopted the recommendation of an external consultant,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) in the Management and
Compliance Study Report commissioned by the EOC to
streamline its procurement procedures for purchases below
the value of $50,000 balancing the risks involved and
operational efficiency. The EOC also endeavours to enhance
its performance continuously through initiatives based on
suggestions from staff.
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On 7 January 2012, the EOC Board'’s brainstorming session
was held at the EOC Office to take stock of the Commission’s
current performance and to map out future directions and
strategies. During the session, major challenges faced by
the EOC and areas requiring its priority attention were
identified. There was a consensus that the EOC would play a
more active role in advancing human rights including those
currently outside the EOC’s remits and that the Commission
would continue to solicit support from the Government and
other stakeholders, which are of importance to the EOC’s
work. Relevant EOC Committees were also tasked to draw up
action plans to take forward the initiatives identified.

Enquiries

This figure covers enquiries related to the EOC’s work by
telephone, in person and in writing. The largest category by
a wide margin is telephone enquiries — 86% of the total. In
all categories, the performance target was set at 95% which
was met in all cases (total: 9,376), with an actual performance
rating of 100%. Further to a review on the targets, the
pledge of “reply to written enquiries on simple issues” was

removed with effect on 1 January 2012 due to the fact that
only a very small number of cases involving simple issues
were received in the past few years, and that most of the
written enquiries received were complex in nature.
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Action on Discrimination Complaint Cases

This includes initiating action on written complaints,
interviewing a complainant who has asked for an
appointment, and concluding a complaint case. In the first
two categories, the target response time (within 3 or 5
working days respectively) was met 100% of the time, and in
the third, within 6 months 82% of the time, surpassing the
performance target of 75%. In instances where the target
response time was exceeded, the reasons may be due to the
complexity of the case, the length of time required by parties
to respond to enquiries or consider conciliation terms, or
other new developments which were unveiled in the course
of investigation.

Legal Assistance

This involves making a decision and informing an applicant of
the outcome of an application for legal assistance. The service
standard was set at three months, and the performance
target of 85% was well met with actual performance at
97%.

Public Education and Promotion

This category has three sub-categories. The first involves time
goals for meeting requests for talks (six weeks), publications
(three days), and guided group visits (five days). The
performance target of 95% was exceeded in each case, with
all time targets being met 100% of the time.

The second category involves convening major promotional
events. The 12-month goal of organising a total of 60
activities was met, as 99 activities were carried out.

The third category deals with feedback from participants in
EOC training programmes. The performance target was set at
80%. The actual performance was almost 100%.
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EOC's Performance Pledge from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012

=H

Enquiry

ERARERNEEERZEH

Answer telephone enquiries during office hours

ERIIMERERNAL

Interview a walk-in enquirer at EOC office

CEHENERESH

Reply to written enquiries on simple issues
(ARBERFNERMFT TS - EHERBAGRDR
2012F1 B1HEVH °

This pledged target was removed effective from
1.1.2012 due to the small number of cases involving
simple issues received in the past years.)

CIEEMANEREH
Reply to written enquiries on complex issues

150

Complaint

HEERAFIELLOE

Initiate action on a written complaint

RIADRH - ZEREERERFOAL
Interview a prospective complainant asking for an
appointment

TERERIR I A %R
Conclude a complaint case

SR B

Legal Assistance

EHEE B BRF I OB RS

Make a decision and inform an applicant of the outcome
of application for legal assistance

NBRHEREE

Public Education and Promotion

ZHE BT ERERIESEDIN B E

Meet requests for talks on equal opportunity issues and
legislation

REMRABTHEES AR EETY

Meet requests by mail or fax for EOC publications

(o] FE B B8 IR 30 B K
Meet requests for guided group visits

BRTI2EEEY

Convene major promotional events

2I0EH TS BRI RGRE W E
Participants satisfied with the training services provided
by the EOC

BB B

o) o)
Immediately . 100% Total: 8,076
3053 B B8
within 30 95% 100% e 271
minutes Tzl
STYERA . o
within 5 95% T "”‘“‘%(_' 0
. N/A Total:
working days
14THERIA ey
within 14 95% 100% mes 1,029
working days Tzl
3TERA . . g
within 3 100% 100% . 852
. Total:
working days
within 5 95% TEA mE
. N/A Total:
working days
within 75% 82% il.“ I 927
6 months elElt
31HW 4agy
within 85% 97% T I 66
3 months CLElE
62 BN 0 . HRE
within 6 weeks 2t 100 Total: it
3TERA ey -
within 3 95% 100% meE 1,745
working days eizlE
within 5 95% 100% R 28
. Total:
working days
REAN - omg . o
within L 100% Total- 99
12 months 60 activities otal:
mE 5 ¥iT100% A
satisfactory 80% almost 100%  Total: 5346
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Background

Hong Kong's four anti-discrimination ordinances, namely
the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (SDO), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (DDO), the Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance (FSDO) and the Race Discrimination
Ordinance (RDO), prohibit unlawful behaviours such as
discrimination on the grounds of sex, pregnancy, and
marital status; sexual harassment; disability discrimination,
harassment and vilification; family status discrimination; and
racial discrimination, harassment and vilification.

The employment-related provisions of the ordinances provide
protection not only to employees, but also to job applicants
and contract workers. They also cover activities relating
to employment agencies and admission to partnerships,
professional bodies and trade unions. The non-employment-
related provisions cover areas such as education, the provision
of goods or services, participation in clubs and sporting
activities, the management of premises, and government
activities.

Complaint Handling Procedure

Those who feel that they have been discriminated against
on protected grounds can lodge a complaint in writing,
either personally or through a representative, with the
EOC. When investigating the complaint, information
relevant to the case will be examined and parties will be
given adequate opportunities to respond and rebut. When
it is considered appropriate, we endeavour to resolve the
matter through conciliation, helping the parties involved
to reach a settlement. If a settlement cannot be reached,
the complainant may apply to the EOC for other forms
of assistance. We look at each application individually,
considering issues of principle, as well as the ability of the
applicant to deal with the case unaided. Assistance granted
can include advice, legal assistance, or any other forms of
assistance deemed appropriate.
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M e R IR
Taking a Complaint to the EOC

iy

No

@ (1) #EFAAZ ER H HIER

Complaint in writing

(2) FHEHRILTI?
.+ REBTHBNOALER
.+ PHEEDETASE

Ih
Successful

Assessment :
e |s it within jurisdiction?
e Should EOC investigate?

Yes
@ bra i)

o BREEEXTR
s ExRMZEZL

LN

Early Conciliation

@ (3) A&

TR

Not successful

e No unlawful act
¢ Lack of substance

T
Discontinuation

Investigation

RIEEBIEATTR
Likely to be an unlawful act

(4) Fngz

Conciliation TRIH
: Not
¢ successful
v: '
Successful e YCET
R AE W

(
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Complainant may

(5) AZR=E apply for legal
Case Closed assistance
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H 272 16,808 REH

EHREETHENEZEIEZ— -
2011/12F 8 - HIIEIE T 16,808 RE
#: A8 076 RE—MEM - 8,732
BERRBEEEN KRZHABREFER
BIELER  EXDRIREEERALE
P P i BRE B A o

—REARERREBAIERSESHNR
EAREBIEES  MABSEIRERRE
BRRIEE R E MBI R AR o £
B #8,732 REBEIHERF - 2,114
R BAREHI)ERE - 9557 B 1%
BIBARAEHINE B - 3865 L2 FE R IS AR fi
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*1: ERES 732 RAREEENR

16,808 Enquiries Handled

Our enquiry service is an important aspect of our work.
In 2011/12, we handled 16,808 enquiries: 8,076 general
enquiries and 8,732 on specific situations. The largest
proportion of enquiries is made through our telephone
hotline, followed by writing and face-to-face interviews
respectively.

General enquiries relate to questions on our activities and
the provisions of the anti-discrimination laws, while specific
enquiries cover gquestions on scenarios or incidents that may
become complaints. Of the 8,732 specific enquiries received,
2,114 were related to the DDO, 955 to the SDO, 386 to the
RDO and 209 to the FSDO, while the remaining 5,068 were
about other issues (Figure 1).

Figure 1: 8,732 Specific Enquiries Handled

4 )
B 2,114 (24%) 209 (2%)
CERRIEAR RG] CREERAIBERIEH)
DDO FSDO
B 955 (11%) 968 (11%)
1 RIBAR 111D Figer TIE
SDO On the EOC's work
386 (5%) B 4,100 (47%)
CRERRIEAR 16451 ) TR RERR AN E 7
RDO Outside the EOC's Jurisdiction
g J
HIEIE1,042 R KRR 1,042 Complaints Handled

RNEE e LU E751 7 B @R R
AREE RIBEIT AR (R2) * &
EFEHBSRIAD T10% © XZHF
HOERIBAR GO AR (4265R) - X
ACHERIEARAZHI Y (247R) ~ (FERIEAR
il (547R ) AR BE I ALIAR 1651 ) (24

=) e

During the year, the EOC received 751 new complaints of
allegedly unlawful acts lodged by individual complainants
(Figure 2), a 10% decrease from the previous year’s figure of
835. The largest proportion was complaints under the DDO
(426), followed by the SDO (247), RDO (54) and FSDO (24).
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Figure 2: 751 New Discrimination Complaints Received

( )
B 426 (57%) 54 (7%)
CRRITRIEH) (RIS IEH])
DDO RDO
B 247 (33%) 24 (3%)
CHERISAR ] CREERIATIE R 1641)
SDO FSDO
\_ J

HREAFARATHNMESR - FHEEHEE  Together with cases carried over from the previous year,

T10RREF(R3) REFERS  the EOC handled a total of 1,042 complaints (Figure 3),

7% ° Lo - FHRSTEHHFET117"  a 7% decrease from the previous year. In addition, the

BERARB S - EOC handled 117 investigations into incidents of potential
discrimination.

NEERNFABRER6A% - EFEER  The successful conciliation rate was 64% during the year,
68% ° compared to 68% in the previous year.

&3 SEREM1,042RIRF
Figure 3: 1,042 Complaints Handled

( )

CEERIFAREH]) DDO g
A% Total: 583

CERNBARIEH]) SDO .
#88 Total: 355

ERRBARIEH]) RDO I
@ Total: 67 | B =rae

Employment-related
(REMIRIEE P FSDO 3 if@’%@f% "
4221 Total: 37 on-employment relate
\- Y,
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B B R 5 1R 1R ) Complaints related to the Disability
OB Discrimination Ordinance (DDO)

2011/12F EAE 7583 R - Hf A total of 583 complaints were investigated in 2011/12, of
4037R(69%)EE(FElE + M180="(31%)  which 403 (69%) were employment-related and 180 (31%)
BIFERESHRE - GHEERSBHERE  were non-employment related cases. For employment-related
BREZR - RZHEFBMIEARR - £ disability discrimination cases, the majority were in relation
EFRENBITIIERAEZREEN - to sick leave and work injuries. The disputes were mainly
ATEEMEBHATEBENEE - = over the ability to perform the inherent requirement of a
RTBEREENMEZE  E2WNIEHE  job, accommodation given to an employee, or unjustifiable
Son - RiESR - SiERFTRERE - hardship. For those cases not related to employment, the
majority involved the provision of goods, facilities or services
or access to premises.

%1 : BEALRFE

Case 1 - Restroom Facilities for People
with Disability
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What happened?

Paul is a motorised wheelchair user. He claimed that he had difficulty using a toilet for people
with disability at a public building because the door was not wide enough to accommodate
his wheelchair. That meant that if he entered the toilet, he could not close the door. Paul
lodged a complaint with the EOC regarding the issue.

An early conciliation meeting, which bypassed a detailed investigation, was arranged after
numerous phone conversations with the concerned parties.

Outcome

The concerned organisation decided that modifying the door of the disabled toilet would be
the most practicable way to resolve the issue. They proposed changing the swing door of the
disabled toilet to a sliding door so as to increase the space in the toilet. Paul accepted the
settlement terms. The conciliation was successful.

Points to note

Under the Disability Discrimination Ordinance, it is unlawful to discriminate against a person
with disability in the usage terms or conditions of the services and facilities.

In this case, even though a toilet for people with disability had been provided, it was not
conducive for use by a motorized wheelchair user. Simply having special facilities is not
enough. Care must be taken to understand the real needs of people with disability and to
ensure that the facilities can be practically used by them.
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Case 2 — Education For All
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EZE2XBRFHBERE -

What happened?

Alex had been in a subsidised school since he was four years old. When he was ten and
studying in Primary Five, the school requested that Alex be assessed for Attention Deficit and
Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) as he was having behavioural issues at school. A psychologist
diagnosed him with mild ADHD, which could be treated simply with behavioural therapy

\. .
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without the need for medication. The psychologist requested that the school allow her to
observe Alex’s in-school behavior in order to suggest appropriate therapy, but the school
refused. His mother, Mary, claimed that the school’s treatment of Alex changed with the
diagnosis. The school notified Mary that Alex would only be allowed to attend a half-day of
school in order not to disturb the other students. When Mary rejected this arrangement, the
school requested Mary to pay for a teaching assistant to sit with Alex for half the school day;
or Alex to leave the school.

Mary eventually complied with the school’s demand and paid to hire a teaching assistant, so
that Alex could complete Primary 6 in the same school.

Towards the end of the school term, Alex was not issued the enrolment notice to continue in
the secondary section of the same school as other Primary 6 students in his class.

Mary alleged that the school had treated Alex less favourably on the ground of his disability
in the following ways: 1) unreasonably requesting him to see a psychologist; 2) requesting
Mary to hire a one-on-one teaching assistant for him; 3) not issuing him the secondary school
enrolment notice.

Outcome

After investigating into the complaint, early conciliation was recommended by the EOC. The
matter was settled with the school agreeing to pay the amount incurred by Mary for the
consultation with a psychologist as well as the hiring of the teaching assistant.

Points to note

It is unlawful for an education establishment to treat a student less favourably on the ground
of his/her disability. Reasonable accommodation should be provided unless its provision would
impose unjustifiable hardship on the institution. It is advisable to discuss arrangements with
the parents openly in order to work out the most feasible solution for the student. Schools
have a responsibility to ensure that people with disabilities have equal access to quality
education, and provide all students, including students with disabilities, a safe and orderly
learning environment.
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Complaints related to the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance (SDO)

Pregnancy discrimination and sexual harassment continue to
occupy the top two ranks of cases lodged under the SDO.
Common acts of sexual harassment include unwelcome
physical contact of a sexual nature, verbal sexual comments,
and suggestions and jokes which the complainants found
offensive.

In the reporting period, the EOC investigated a total of 355
SDO cases, of which 329 concerned employment-related
allegations. 54% of them (177 cases) involved pregnancy
discrimination, while 29% involved sexual harassment
(94 cases). Investigations were also made into 26 non-
employment related allegations, 50% (13 cases) of which
were related to sex discrimination, and 46% (12 cases) were
related to sexual harassment.

Case 3 - Pregnancy Leads to Dismissal
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What happened?

Julie had just joined an international trading company as an Administration Manager. She
had been with the company for just a week when her pregnancy was confirmed, and
she accordingly informed her supervisor. Six days later, Julie’s supervisor told her that her
employment contract would be terminated with immediate effect as her physical condition
was not suitable for the present job. He cited that the job required frequent travel overseas
for almost a quarter of her working days. Julie, however, recalled her supervisor saying that
she would have to travel only once every four or five months. She believed the reason given
by her supervisor for her dismissal was just an excuse. Upon investigation, the EOC found that
there was a possibility that Julie was treated unfairly due to her pregnancy. The information
provided by the company was also insufficient for the purpose of justifying that Julie’s
termination was completely unrelated to her pregnancy. Thus, conciliation was recommended
for the case.

Outcome

After a conciliation meeting and numerous phone conversations, a settlement was reached.
The company agreed to give Julie a monetary compensation.

Points to note

It is unlawful for an employer to discriminate on the ground of an employee’s pregnancy by
dismissing her. Most of the pregnancy discrimination complaint cases brought to the EOC are
in the employment field. They often take one of the following forms: verbal criticism during
the pregnancy, applying pressure to resign, less favourable treatment in bonus calculations
or salary adjustments, dismissal upon return from maternity leave or posts being taken over
permanently by the relief staff. Each complaint needs to be considered on a case-by-case
basis. A decision to treat an employee less favourably may be the result of many factors.
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However, under the Sex Discrimination Ordinance, even if only one of these factors is related
to the employee’s pregnancy, the decision would be deemed to be unlawful as it was made
on the ground of the employee’s pregnancy. Investigation probes into details such as inherent
requirements of the job, performance issues, the business environment, and organisational
changes to see whether there are genuine reasons for the employer’s action. Good human
resource practices can certainly help to minimise these types of disputes.

\_ J
B B ERR B AR R B Complaints related to the Race
R ER Discrimination Ordinance (RDO)

FieRFEEAE T7R7BIE(ERE  During the year, we investigated a total of 67 RDO cases,
RIEFIIR BEIEEF - EH15R022%)5 15 (22%) of which were employment-related and 52 (78%)
BIBELRE - 52R(78%)BIFEFEHE - non-employment related. 77% of non-employment related
77%FEEHENRF S RERER cases were in the provision of goods, facilities and services.

F e sk AR TS T E YR RS AR ©

AR4 : LEEBATTLERERF
Case 4 — Refusal to Issue Credit Card

to an Ethnic Minority Person
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What happened?

Dave, a Ugandan who has been living in Hong Kong for several years, opened a savings
account with a bank and subsequently applied for a credit card with the same bank.

He was shocked to receive a letter declining his application for a credit card. He suspected the
bank declined his application because of his race. He lodged a complaint with the EOC.

Upon investigation by the EOC, the bank explained that there was a miscommunication. The
credit card application was rejected not on the ground of Dave’s race or his credit report, but
because of insufficient documents. They would call Dave to explain the matter and continue
with the approval process.

Outcome

The case was settled by early conciliation. The bank contacted Dave, obtained the required
documents, and subsequently approved his credit card application. Dave was satisfied with
the outcome.

Points to note

It is unlawful under the Race Discrimination Ordinance to discriminate against a person on
the ground of race in providing goods, facilities and services. In Dave’s case, it might have
amounted to race discrimination if the bank had rejected his application because of his
race. The manner and quality in which the service is provided is also taken into account in
determining race discrimination.
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Complaints related to the Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance
(FSDO)

During the year, a total of 37 FSDO allegations were
investigated, 34 (92%) of which were employment-related
and 3 (8%) non-employment related. The majority (68%)
of the allegations in the employment field were related to
dismissal on the ground of family status.

EOC-initiated Investigations

The EOC also initiates investigations into incidents involving
unlawful acts that we notice, or which are brought to our
attention by third parties or aggrieved individuals who do
not wish to be involved in the investigation or conciliation
process. Under these circumstances, the EOC approaches
the concerned parties to inquire into the matter, explain the
relevant provision, and advise them to rectify the situation.
During the year under review, we handled 117 such cases,
with the majority falling in the DDO category (mainly on
accessibility and service provision), followed by the SDO
(mainly on recruitment and service provision).

S—— L
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Conciliation

Of the 1,042 cases under investigation in 2011/12, we
concluded 822 cases. DDO cases made up 55% (448) of
concluded cases, followed by SDO cases at 34% (283), RDO
cases at 7% (58), and FSDO cases at 4% (33).

Figure 4: Concluded Cases — Breakdown by Ordinances
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Of the 822 cases concluded, 245 proceeded to conciliation,
with 158 being successfully conciliated. The successful
conciliation rate was 64% during the year. 27 cases were
resolved early between the parties before the investigation
was completed. A total of 132 cases were withdrawn due to
complainants having no desire to pursue the case further or
understanding the situation better after receiving an initial
response from the respondents. 418 cases were discontinued
due to various reasons, including lacking in substance, no
unlawful act found, and complaints lodged beyond the
12-month time bar. (Figure 5)
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Figure 5: Concluded Cases — Breakdown by Action Taken
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Legal Assistance

When a complaint has been lodged, but not settled, the
EOC has the authority to grant assistance to applicants who
wish to take legal action with regard to the complaint. Upon
receiving legal advice from our lawyers, the EOC’s Legal and
Complaints Committee decides whether or not to grant
assistance in a case. The Legal and Complaints Committee
consists of a diverse combination of members, including
academics, employers, lawyers, legislators, NGOs, and trade
union representatives, in order to present a balanced view of
the various stakeholders in society.

The assistance granted by the EOC may include legal advice
to the applicant by EOC lawyers, legal services relating to the
gathering and assessment of further information or evidence,
representation in legal proceedings by EOC lawyers or by
lawyers in private practice engaged by the EOC.

During the year, we handled 69 applications for assistance.
Of these, 24 were granted legal assistance, 43 were not
granted, 1 was withdrawn by the applicant, and 1 was still
being considered at the end of the period. (See Figure 6 for
the breakdown of applications by ordinance.)
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Figure 6: Breakdown of Applications for Legal Assistance (by Ordinance)
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There was no RDO case application for legal assistance in 2011/12.

BFRAFEEGEINEREE Reasons for Granting or Declining Legal Assistance

ERTERHL T 2B HE  LikaeE In deciding whether or not to grant legal assistance, the EOC
BZATERZE  BFEEAZESFREE]  considers a wide range of factors, such as whether a question
M EARNEHERE 5 HEM%E  of principle is involved, the complexity of the case, the
REERR @« THeem(ERIa 8B E availability of other sources of assistance, and the strength of
EZE - RLBEZSTIRMEEHIE  evidence. The applicability of these factors can vary from case

SLIEEEL o to case, and often a combination of reasons is involved in
reaching a decision.

IUTRETEEZHNETERA : The main reasons for granting legal assistance may include
the following:
o [AZRFEMFLE B/ AEMERET 5O
o TS|IMETREUE ST RILIFRIZEME o Establishing a precedent on important legal issues
0 IERIEAR KB B R e E R Raising public awareness in areas of discrimination which
o TIHEENHIE E - JHRRIAR are still prevalent in Hong Kong, such as pregnancy
discrimination and accessibility to premises
e Encouraging institutional changes to eliminate
discrimination
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The main reasons for declining legal assistance may include
the following:

e The evidence is insufficient to support a good prospect for
success in court.

e The case does not involve an important question of
principle.

e No meaningful result can be achieved by way of legal
proceedings.

Legally Assisted Cases

For cases in which legal assistance is granted, parties can
often successfully reach a settlement through negotiations
with assistance from our lawyers.

In 2011/12, 14 cases in which legal assistance was granted
before and during the year were resolved without the
need to commence legal proceedings. Of these, eight were
employment-related SDO cases; four were employment-
related DDO cases; and two were RDO cases in education
and employment respectively. In eight of these 14 cases, no
further action was taken after the complainant had received
legal advice or after their objective had met. The remaining
six cases were settled on confidential terms.

Twenty-two other cases where legal assistance was granted
before and during the year are still in process, with no
outcome having been reached and no court proceedings
having commenced at the end of the period under review.

Assisted cases concluded without commencing legal proceedings

CHERIBAR 5 £51) SDO: 8
IR AR 15 5]) DDO: 4
(TR AR 6{51) RDO:

14

AT REFEEBUNRFERITE
RID P S B T ER AR R — Lo 8
BEZ - A2ZE(E -

The following cases provide a useful look at some of the
typical cases granted legal assistance and settled by the EOC
before legal action commenced.
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EEEEWE  WEAMBHER
Selected Cases of Legal Assistance Concluded by Settlement

ER1: EREEAEERE

Case 1 - Sexual Harassment in Employment
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Background

Ms X worked as a technician. When she was transferred to a new post, a more senior
employee (the harasser) made remarks and physical contact of a sexual nature to her in the
workplace, which Ms X found to be unwelcome, offensive and humiliating. The harasser
denied he had committed sexual harassment. Ms X lodged a complaint with the EOC against
the harasser as well as the employer for being vicariously liable for the acts of the harasser.

What the EOC did

The EOC commenced an investigation after receiving the complaint. The complaint against
the employer was settled with the employer agreeing to strengthen its policy and training
on sexual harassment as well as to re-design the female staff uniform. Conciliation between
Ms X and the harasser was attempted but was unsuccessful. After assessing the merits of the
case, the EOC decided to assist Ms X in commencing legal action for sexual harassment. Legal
advice was provided by our lawyers, who also assisted in settlement negotiations with the
harasser. The parties eventually reached a settlement and Ms X received a settlement sum and
an apology letter from the harasser as compensation.
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Case 2 - Pregnancy-related Sex
Discrimination in Employment
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Background

Ms Z was a clerk. She was pregnant during the probation period, and submitted the
pregnancy notice to the employer after her employment was confirmed. She was then
dismissed by the employer about a week after submission of the pregnancy notice. Ms Z
lodged a complaint to the EOC against the employer for pregnancy discrimination.

What the EOC did

The EOC commenced an investigation after receiving the complaint. The employer
explained that Ms Z was dismissed because of her poor performance and bad relationship
with colleagues, but did not provide sufficient information to support these allegations.
Conciliation between the parties was attempted but was unsuccessful. After assessing the
merits of the case, and having taken into consideration the fact that the allegations relating to
performance issues contradicted the confirmation of employment, the EOC decided to assist
Ms Z in commencing legal action for pregnancy discrimination. Legal advice was provided
by our lawyers, who also assisted in settlement negotiations with the employer. The parties
eventually reached a settlement and the employer agreed to pay monetary compensation to
Ms Z.
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Case 3 - Disability Discrimination in

Employment
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Background

Mr Y was a truck driver. He suffered from work injury and other illness, and had to take
sick leave for about five months. On the first day he returned to work, he was dismissed
by his employer. Mr Y lodged a complaint with the EOC against the employer for disability
discrimination.

What the EOC did

The EOC commenced an investigation after receiving the complaint. The employer explained
that Mr Y was dismissed because of redundancy and performance issues instead of his injury
or illness, but the employer was unable to produce sufficient information to support these
claims. Conciliation between the parties was attempted but in the end was unsuccessful. After
assessing the merits of the case, the EOC decided to assist Mr Y in commencing legal action
for disability discrimination. Legal advice was provided by our lawyers, who also assisted in
settlement negotiations with the employer. The parties eventually reached a settlement, and
Mr Y received a settlement sum equivalent to about three months’ salary as compensation.

. J
SERERR A Court Cases

REZFHERIET107EAFEFF o /£ During the year, the EOC handled 10 court proceedings.
FHEEMMNHBET - BERHFE2RE  With assistance from our lawyers, two of these cases were
RRE TR - BEEITEM - successfully settled on confidential terms without proceeding
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to trial. One sexual harassment case was tried before the
court which ruled in favour of the victim who was awarded
monetary compensation and legal costs. Seven remaining
cases were still ongoing as of 31 March 2012. Of these 10
court proceedings, four fell under the SDO while six were
under the DDO.

Settlement Terms after Conciliation
and Legal Assistance

While the EOC endeavours to assist warranted cases by way
of commencing legal proceedings, we appreciate the value of
resolving disputes through settlement.

For those cases which were successfully conciliated or settled
after legal assistance, the settlement terms included:

e Changes in policies/practices; undertaking to cease
discriminatory practices; restrictions on future acts;
disciplinary action.

e The provision of benefits, including education
programmes/training; the provision of goods, services and
facilities; or improvement in facilities and accessibility.

e Reference letters; apologies; complainants accepting
respondents’ explanation.

e Monetary compensation, offers of employment,
reinstatements or donations to charity.

Under the current legislation, each party bears its own legal
costs. Therefore, legal costs incurred by the EOC in assisted
cases generally cannot be recovered from the defendants.
There is also no provision to enable the EOC to use any
compensation awarded to assisted persons towards legal
costs incurred by the Commission.

The total amount of monetary compensation in the year
under review through conciliation and legal assistance was
approximately HK$2.8 million.
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Policy Analysis and Advocacy
Working Group on Access for All

The Working Group on Access (WGA) of the EOC was
formed to advocate “barrier-free access” in Hong Kong. One
of the Group’s key tasks last year, in addition to monitoring
the government $1.3 billion access improvement plan, is to
ensure that the facilities of the future Kai Tak Cruise Terminal
be universally accessible and user-friendly to people with
disabilities. Accordingly, the EOC wrote to the Secretary for
Commerce and Economic Development, who later pledged
that the Architectural Services Department would take into
account the EOC’s comments and suggestions in finalising
the detailed design of the Terminal.

In 2011, the Development Bureau submitted a paper to
the Legislative Council (LegCo) on the “Integrated Building
Maintenance Assistance Scheme” (IBMAS). The paper
proposes to consolidate the various financial assistance
schemes for building maintenance and repair administered
by the Hong Kong Housing Society, Urban Renewal Authority
and Buildings Department under the Subcommittee on
Building Safety and Related Issues of the LegCo’s Panel on
Development. The proposed IBMAS, after incorporating the
suggestions made by WGA, explicitly stated in its scope the
inclusion of works related to the installation and repair of
barrier-free access facilities for people with disabilities.

To ensure that public transport services are accessible to
all people, the WGA recommended the Government to
make access requirements a standard provision in the
renewal of public bus services franchises. In March 2012,
the EOC hosted a sharing session entitled “Accessible Public
Transport Services” to review the existing challenges faced
by people with disabilities and others in accessing public
transport services and to explore the way forward for their
enhancement measures.
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DEEREHE T/EE Working Group on Education for Ethnic Minorities

FTHeRREHES2LAERKER A In recognition of the various challenges faced by ethnic
HeRERS - EhE2Fd L ASZKA  minority students in academic attainment, of which learning
BPkEL - EL e 2010E7 85k z4>  Chinese remains the greatest hurdle, the EOC established
BEBHRE TE/)NE IR EHBEHE the Working Group on Education for Ethnic Minorities in
NELBEREEERETSHAERS - July 2010 to explore measures to provide ethnic minority
201147 B e Tz s BARER 8 students with a level playing field in the education system. In
EEELAAESEEHENTISEH#HE July 2011, the EOC called on the Education Bureau to ensure
AEENAND LEHFEEARKE equal access to quality education for ethnic minority students,
FHEB FEERE - FHEZ 812012 many of whom continue to face significant barriers in their
FEREETHEITHERS * TE:5%  academic pursuit. After continuous advocacy efforts, the
VEEREEKRERE  THREEM EOC Members met with the new Chief Executive in summer
THeNER  WASEGEZEMAS 2012, during which this issue was the major topic. The Chief
HEREMIEZ— - Executive was receptive to the EOC’s views and pledged to
make the issue a priority area of his administration.

AEVEEEREE SEERHE To make information about the education system more

& ROBERESEH) T T4l F4%  accessible to ethnic minority parents and advise them of

TEHERNHER  Tge LR TA their children’s equal rights to education with particular

ABZE )T - BREE R ESChRIN reference to the RDO, the EOC published a pamphlet entitled

BUANEVEERE B XK ° "Education for All” in Chinese and English, as well as in six
ethnic minority languages.
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UEEEKREZEER M Legislative Council Panel /
ZESER Subcommittee Meetings

BE—F 0 THteREERLEZET In the past year, representatives of the EOC were invited to

FeEKEEe NMIZEENEE attend a number of LegCo panel/subcommittee meetings
FEmEE R B covering a range of topics, including the following:
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e |Initiatives for the Enhancement of Mental Health Services
from the Hospital Authority

e Education for Ethnic Minorities Children

e Mainstreaming of Universal Design Concepts

e Enhancement of Community Mental Health Services

Community Engagement

The Policy and Research Unit of the EOC meets with
stakeholder groups regularly to keep updated on their
concerns and views in relation to the elimination of
discrimination and advancement of equal opportunities. It
also represents the EOC to participate in the Government'’s
consultation forums such as the Committee on the Promotion
of Racial Harmony, Ethnic Minorities Forum, Sexual Minorities
Forum and Human Rights Forum. Discussions and exchanges
in these forums are brought back for further deliberation by
the EOC for follow up as deemed appropriate.

Research Projects

Baseline Survey on Public Attitudes towards
Persons with a Disability 2010

The survey aims to evaluate changes in public attitudes
towards persons with a disability in the realms of
employment, public access, services and facilities, social
interaction, education and training, after the enactment of
the Disability Discrimination Ordinance (DDO) over a decade
ago. A total of 1,011 respondents aged 15 or above were
successfully enumerated. The preliminary findings reveal
that public attitudes towards people with a disability (except
those with mental illness and HIV/AIDS) improved slightly
in the aforementioned realms. Notably, over 50% of the
respondents felt that persons with a disability had more or
equal opportunities in the use of services and facilities than
persons without a disability. However, in other realms, the
respondents thought persons with a disability had fewer
opportunities than persons without a disability. Compared
to the 1998 data, persons with mental illness and HIV/AIDS
still faced significant discrimination. A press briefing on key
findings of the survey was held in September 2011.
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Study on Equal Learning Opportunities for
Students with Disabilities under the Integrated
Education System

The study aims to evaluate the effectiveness of the
implementation of integrated education/inclusive education
(IE) for students with disabilities in a bid for its further
advancement. The first part of the survey was conducted
from September 2010 to March 2011. It consisted of focus
group discussion sessions and a questionnaire, covering
over 5,000 stakeholders including principals, teachers,
professionals (such as social workers, school counsellors
and educational psychologists), parents and students. The
second part was a consultative focus group discussion survey
in search of feasible solutions for enhancing IE, which was
completed in November 2011.

The preliminary findings show that educators agreed that IE
could facilitate an equal opportunity for a regular education
for students with special educational needs (SEN). Among
the stakeholders, teachers were relatively more resistant
to SEN students, especially those with behavioral issues. In
general, fellow parents and students were willing to accept
students with SEN, but there were still misunderstanding and
reservations.

Study on Racial Encounters and Discrimination
Experienced by South Asians (formerly named “In-
depth Study on Racial Encounters and Experience
in Discrimination”)

The focus group survey was undertaken in order to solicit
opinions for evaluating the impact on people after the Race
Discrimination Ordinance was enacted in 2008. Interviews
were undertaken from December 2010 to April 2011. A total
of 19 focus groups comprising 107 Chinese and South Asian
stakeholders were held. Survey findings were released to the
public on 22 March 2012.
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South Asians in general admitted that the situation has
actually been improving over the last ten years. The main
problems facing South Asians were learning to read and
write Chinese for students and finding employment for
adults. Limited knowledge of spoken and written Chinese is
a major disadvantage for them in job seeking and pursuing
tertiary education, as Chinese language was now a standard
entrance requirement of both employment and further study.

Recommendations are made to formulate strategies and
measures to enhance social integration of South Asians/ethnic
minorities in areas including employment, education, social
interactions and provision of goods, services and facilities.

Study on Students’ Sexual Attitudes and Views on
Sexual Harassment

The study aims to explore students’ attitudes with respect
to awareness of sexual harassment and their responses
when they encounter sexual exploitation, as well as other
issues such as compensated dating, premarital sex and
teenage pregnancy. The survey was undertaken from May
to November 2011. The study included questionnaire survey
covering over 5,000 students from primary schools, secondary
schools and universities, and qualitative survey comprising 17
focus group discussion sessions.

The preliminary findings show that about one-fifth of them
were sexually harassed in the previous year. Most cases of
sexual harassment occurred among peers in the classroom,
with harassed students preferring not to seek assistance from
school staff.
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Exploratory Study on Gender Stereotyping and Its
Impacts on Male Gender

The study aims to raise public awareness of the issue of “Men
in Pain” and men’s struggles and concerns in the family,
workplace and society with respect to various age groups.
Two open seminars were conducted in 2011 to enable public
discussions on issues concerning men’s situation in light
of changes in the socio-economic structure. A total of 470
participants attended the seminars and 340 questionnaires
were collected. Furthermore, 10 focus group discussion
sessions and nine individual interviews comprising 71 male
participants were carried out.

The preliminary findings reveal that all the men interviewed
are influenced by traditional gender norms, and they feel
that they have to fulfil the normative ideal of male behaviour
according to the society and culture. Most respondents still
think that it is essential for men to be more successful than
their female partners. In addition, family constitutes another
source of pressure for men with relation to the burdens
of household chores and child care. These responsibilities
become a hardship especially for working class dual-income
families who lack the resources to employ external help. To
make matters worse, most men are reluctant and ashamed to
seek help when they face emotional problems or family crisis,
because they have fewer networks for support.

Equal Opportunities Awareness Survey 2012

For the purpose of continuous improvement, the study aims
to obtain information in areas of public opinion including EO
awareness, views on the anti-discrimination ordinances and
the EOC's work, the effectiveness of promotion channels and
customer satisfaction, and views on forthcoming EO issues.
The project commenced in March 2012.

Sharing Sessions

The EOC organises sharing sessions in order to gauge public
views on territory-wide important issues that have policy
implications.
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Sharing Session on Accessible Public Transport
Services

The EOC organised the Sharing Session on Accessible Public
Transport Services on 10 March 2012, focusing on franchised
buses and rail transport, which are the two major means
of public transport in the local community. The sharing
session had provided a platform for different stakeholders,
including persons with disabilities, policymakers, government
representatives as well as public transport operators, to
exchange views and experiences in relation to the accessibility
of public transport services. The speakers and panelists with
disabilities provided useful perspectives into the current
situation in the accessibility of public transport, particularly
rail and bus services, and how these measures can be further
enhanced.

Sharing Session on the Impact on Employees with
Disabilities under the Minimum Wage Ordinance

The EOC hosted a sharing session on 16 July 2011 to
examine the impact of the Minimum Wage Ordinance (MWO)
on employees with disabilities since its implementation. The
sharing session discussed the way forward to further enhance
equal employment opportunity for people with disabilities.
Participants included policy makers, government officials,
persons with disabilities, representatives of non-government
organisations, employers and other stakeholders. They shared
their views on the issues related to the impact of the MWO
on employees with disabilities.
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We are committed to fostering equal opportunities values,
enhancing understanding of the anti-discrimination
ordinances, and increasing public awareness among the
community in Hong Kong. For different target groups,
the EOC adopts targeted approaches and promotional
tools to ensure the successful communication of our
equal opportunity message. Throughout 2011/12, the
EOC prepared various publications and organised a wide
range of events and activities, including media campaigns,
programmes for schools and employers, community outreach
activities, and public education initiatives.

Media Programmes and Campaigns
RTHK Docu-drama

The EOC joined hands once again with Radio Television Hong
Kong (RTHK) to produce the 7th series of the TV docu-drama,
A Mission for Equal Opportunities. This six-episode series
was broadcast on TVB Jade Channel at prime time from April
2011 to May 2011.

In this educational TV series, we highlight discrimination
on the ground of race in employment and the provision of
goods and services, sex discrimination, and family status
discrimination in the workplace. We also explore the problem
of accessibility in Hong Kong, the under-examined needs
and problems of men in today’s changing world, and age
discrimination in employment.

One of the episodes of the series entitled “Cracking the
Dress Code” (8 #&%& %K) received an Award of Merit in the
international Accolade Competition. The Series was also
ranked 20th in the 2011 TV Programme Appreciation Index
Survey, conducted by the Public Opinion Programme of the
University of Hong Kong.

In promoting “A Mission for Equal Opportunities”, we
contributed six feature articles to Metro Daily News which
explained the legal perspectives of the equal opportunity
issues covered in each of the TV episodes. From March

Annual Report 2011/12 3k
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to May 2011, we also launched a poster advertisement
campaign promoting the docu-drama series along the
trackside of the MTR network (Island Line, Tsuen Wan Line,
Kwun Tong Line, Tung Chung Line and Tseung Kwan O Line).

Production of the RTHK Docu-drama Training
Module

Following the broadcast of the TV docu-drama “A Mission
for Equal Opportunities 2011" in the first quarter of
2011/12, the episodes had been uploaded on the EOC
website. Additionally, an educational module comprising
DVDs and information booklets, were produced to sustain
the educational effects. An additional segment was added
to each episode, whereby a presenter explained the relevant
principles and legal provisions. About 1,500 copies of the
module were distributed to schools, human resources
practitioners and NGOs.

Translation and dubbing of the Docu-drama Series

In order to strengthen the educational impact of the TV
Series, the docu-drama series were translated and dubbed
into Putonghua and English, also uploaded on the EOC
website for public viewing.

On a Clear Day - Radio Programme Promoting
Equal Opportunities

The EOC partnered with Commercial Radio to promote equal
opportunities through its popular morning programme “On
a Clear Day”. The five-minute segments, in Cantonese with
the theme of working together to eliminate discrimination,
were broadcast on Fridays between 8-9am from November
2011 to February 2012. The EOC Chairperson and Convenors
of EOC Committees including The Hon Frederick Fung, Ms
Garling Wong, Ms Susanna Chiu and Mr. Lee Luen-fai were
invited to explain EO concepts and anti-discrimination laws
using case analysis through the interviews with the radio
host. The radio segments have been uploaded on both the
EOC and Commercial Radio’s websites.
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Anti-discrimination News Weekly — Radio
Programme Promoting Equal Opportunities

In March 2012, the EOC launched a new radio segment
titled ”Anti-discrimination News Weekly” to enhance public
understanding of equal opportunities. The EOC began to
broadcast the 3-minute segments on the “Va Va Afternoon
D" programme from 23 March 2012 on Commercial Radio
1 (FM88.1-89.5) featuring news on relevant discrimination
topics, on Fridays between 3pm and 5pm over 35 weeks.
Members of the public could interactively learn from real-
life discrimination complaint cases through phone-in Q&A
sessions. To promote public awareness on this radio segment,
there were poster advertisements at various MTRC stations
throughout the city.

Due to programme restructuring, the EOC segment was
changed to be broadcast on a new radio programme
“Fun Box (RImjK)” from July 2012. The name of the EOC
segment, broadcasting time and format remain unchanged.

EO Diversity Project - Radio Programme Promoting
Equal Opportunities

The Equal Opportunities Diversity Project 2011, a 13-month
radio programme aimed at promoting inclusion and diversity,
was launched on 2 March 2011. The programme, broadcast
on RTHK Radio 2, featured weekly interviews and radio
segments “The Diversified Hong Kong” introducing the life-
style, languages and culture of ethnic minorities. Over 70
guests including Legislative Councillors, representatives from
NGOs, rehab groups, women's groups and ethnic minority
organisations were interviewed on the EOC’s weekly radio
programme to raise public awareness on the concept of
equal opportunities and acceptance of all, irrespective of their
race, gender, disability, or family status.
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A variety show was held at the Yuen Long Plaza on 14 April
2012 as the finale of the project to promote the messages
of “Equal Employment Opportunity for All”. It concluded
the year-long radio project and featured performances and
sharing by ethnic minorities, people with disabilities and
popular singers. The video of the show was uploaded on the
EOC’s YouTube Channel.

EOC YouTube Channel

To enhance public awareness about equal opportunities and
social inclusion through the platform of the Internet, the EOC
YouTube Channel was launched in February 2008. During
the year, 57 new videos were produced and added by the
EOC, including documentaries promoting racial harmony and
inclusion between persons with and without a disability, as
well as video highlights of the EOC's activities such as Career
Challenge, Uniquely Me! and seminars on gender equality.

In December 2011, the EOC’s YouTube documentary,
Between Hearing and Not Hearing, was selected for screening
at the United Nations Enable Film Festival in New York. The
festival is a commemorative activity for the International
Day for Persons with Disabilities, observed annually on 3
December. The film tells the stories of people whose lives
have been influenced by hearing impairment, and encourages
viewers to consider what it would take for society to free
itself from discrimination and enable people with disabilities
to participate in all aspects of society without any barriers.
The EOC’s documentary was one of seven films selected from
around the world for screening.

Since the launch of EOC YouTube Channel, there were totally
155 videos uploaded on the Channel which have attracted
over 225,000 views.
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Broadcasting of TV and radio APIs on racial
equality

The EOC's TV and radio Announcements in the Public
Interest (APIs) featuring people in different races working and
studying in harmony continued to be broadcast on various TV
and radio stations, to promote diversity and racial harmony.
Radio APIs in Indonesian, Nepali and Urdu languages have
also been broadcast on ethnic minority language radio
programmes targeting these communities.

EOC Newspaper Supplements

To continue to promote the Race Discrimination Ordinance
(RDO) and the messages of racial harmony, newspaper
supplements were published in May and June 2011 on five
newspapers for ethnic minority communities including Suara
(in Indonesian); the SUN, Hong Kong News and the Philippine
STAR (three Filipino newspapers in English); and Sunrise
Weekly Hong Kong (in Nepalese). In the supplements, we
had included a brief on the RDO and the EOC’'s complaint
procedures, a short message from the EOC Chairperson, EOC
resource materials on the RDO, our community outreach
efforts and territory-wide programmes to promote diversity
and equal opportunities.

To commemorate the International Day for the Elimination
of Racial Discrimination on 21 March 2012 and widen public
awareness of their rights and responsibilities in a racially
inclusive society, the EOC placed a newspaper advertorial in
two English and one Chinese newspapers. The advertorial
supplement provided an overview of our efforts and available
resources to combat race discrimination in Hong Kong.

Annual Report 2011/12 3k
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In addition, the EOC supported community events to mark
this day by holding information booths at the “International
Day for the Elimination of Racial Discrimination Carnival”
organised by HK Unison and “Cross Cultural Carnival
2012" hosted by Caritas Youth and Community Service.
EOC representatives were available at the events to answer
questions from the public and promote knowledge of the
Race Discrimination Ordinance.

MTRC Advertising Campaign

The MTRC escalator advertisement campaign was launched
throughout the MTR network from February to December
2011. A total of nine advertisements to promote the
messages of racial equality, access for all, preventing sexual
harassment and pregnancy discrimination were placed at
escalator crowns of different MTRC stations. One of the
advertisement contains the words “We as One” in eight
different languages. MTR passengers can gain an insight into
the experience of discrimination and see our vision of equal
opportunities as they use the public transport.

Tram Body Advertising Campaign

Tram users may have noticed that Hong Kong's iconic
mode of transport has served an additional purpose of
promoting equal opportunities last year. The EOC’s tram
body advertisement campaign ran from June to August 2011.
Three trams carrying posters on access for all, racial equality
and preventing pregnancy discrimination ran in different
districts to widen the reach of these messages to the public.

New Bus Body Advertising Campaign
The EOC had been running a new bus body advertisement

campaign in December 2011, with the theme “We as One”
painted on 100 operating KMB buses.
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Yahoo Homepage Advertising Campaign

To harness the power of on-line media, the EOC launched
an advertising campaign on the most popular webpage,
Yahoo! Hong Kong from April to July 2011. Five banner
advertisements and two APIs (Announcements in the
Public Interest) had been displayed on Yahoo's homepage
(http://hk.yahoo.com) to promote different equal
opportunities messages including racial harmony, preventing
pregnancy discrimination, accessibility, preventing sexual
harassment and My Vision of EO Photo Competition.

Other Media Activities

The EOC handled a total of 358 media enquiries in 2011/12.
The EOC also held 14 news conferences, granted 70 media
interviews and issued 35 news releases.

School Programmes

Focusing on children and youth is a key public education
strategy for the EOC as we seek to nurture acceptance of
equal opportunities and inclusion from an early age.

Career Challenge

Designed to highlight the importance of breaking down
stereotypes, the EOC’s annual youth mentorship programme,
“Career Challenge”, is now in its tenth year. Since its
launch in 2002, this programme has attracted over 5,800
secondary and primary school students. During the year,
over 700 students from 100 schools
gained remarkable new career insights
and broadened their horizons by
participating in large-group sharing
sessions and special agency visit.
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To tie in with the New Senior Secondary (NSS) Curriculum,
Career Challenge has been registered as an “Other Learning
Experience (OLE) Programme” in the Activity Data Bank of the
Education Bureau. The participation hours for this programme
may be taken into account for the planning of the student’s
OLE. Like in the previous year, interested students got the
opportunity to be trained as one of the programme hosts
responsible for interviewing the eight Mentors during the
sharing sessions.

This year, participating students also got the chance to visit
the Kowloon Mosque and meet with students of different
races through the joint programme with “Uniquely Me!”.
The mentors’ sharing sessions were produced as video
highlights and have been uploaded to the EOC website and
YouTube Channel for public review. In conjunction with this
programme, we continue to have a Facebook Group for
Career Challenge mentees to attract a greater number of
youth participants.

Over 100 participating students have also joined the “Career
Challenge Ambassador Scheme”, which aims to encourage
young people to engage in spreading the message of equal
opportunities in their schools and the community. A Career
Challenge Ambassador is expected to initiate personal or
team efforts to raise awareness about equality issues, and to
reach out to minority groups in the society.

Uniquely Me!

Uniquely Me!, the EOC’s English-language youth
development programme, was launched in December 2010. It
aims to be a platform for youths to get inspired to overcome
barriers and break stereotypes. During the year 2011/12, the
EOC organised two Uniquely Me! sharing sessions attended
by over 150 youths, which featured guest mentors’ sharing,
youth performances, and group activities to exchange ideas
on discrimination in Hong Kong. In addition, a youth writing
and speech competition was launched, which saw a total of
47 entries on the topic of “For a better tomorrow.” In order
to facilitate cross cultural sharing between mainstream and
ethnic minority youths, joint events with our Cantonese-
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speaking youth programme, Career Challenge, were held in
December 2011 and February 2012. The EOC also maintains
a Facebook page for the Uniquely Me! programme to
facilitate sharing of information on equal opportunities with
the youth participants as well as to keep them updated on
upcoming events.

Drama Performances

During the year, the EOC engaged three local theatre
troupes to stage plays and puppet shows at schools on equal
opportunities and diversity issues. The troupes performed
for approximately 71,000 students. On average, nearly 99%
of the schools found our plays “good” or “very good”, and
felt that the performances were interesting, educational and
meaningful.
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Creating a Gender-friendly Learning Environment

To continue with our sexual harassment public education
targeting tertiary education institutions, we distributed
posters and plastic folders to university students to draw their
attention to the issue of sexual harassment in the education
setting and encourage them to use our online training
module on sexual harassment. We also awarded e-certificates
and 4GB USB memory sticks to users who successfully
completed the training module. Talks and training are also
provided to schools and universities upon request.

Programmes for Employers
Equal Opportunity (EO) Club

The EOC works with a wide range of employers and
employees to ensure they are equipped to implement
equal opportunities and good management practices
in their workplace. The EO Club was set up in 2006 to
provide a platform for exchange. The club aims to improve
understanding of the anti-discrimination ordinances and
help employers, human resources practitioners, workplace
supervisors, and trainers implement good management
practices and comply with the laws.

Around 300 human resources practitioners from over 170
corporations, government departments, universities, small
and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) and NGOs joined the
EO Club to share their experiences in implementing diversity
in their respective workplace in 2011/12. The topics for the
seminars, devised with reference to the input and request
made by our Club members during the year, were:

e Seminar on “A Better Solution to Workplace Disability
Issues — Case Analysis”

e The Revised Code of Practice on Employment under the
Disability Discrimination Ordinance

e Seminar on “Myths on Sexual Harassment and How to
Prevent It in the Workplace”
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Members' networking sessions were likewise organised for
the exchange of ideas on diversity and complaint handling
issues. EO Club members generally found the seminars and
networking sessions informative and useful. To strengthen
our connection with the members and to keep them updated
on our latest news, we send out e-News every month.

SME Expo

The EOC participated in the 11th World SME Expo, an annual
event organised by the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council to disseminate information to small and medium-
sized enterprises. The EOC distributed promotional
publications, including various leaflets, EOC news, and Code
of Practice guidebooks to the Expo visitors. Positive feedback
on our booth was received from almost 98% of our visitors
who filled out evaluation questionnaires. The praise we
received mentioned the welcoming attitude of our staff,
the presentation of our booth, and the usefulness of the
information provided.

Community Outreach

Community Participation Funding Programme

The purpose of this programme is to encourage NGOs,
community groups, and schools to initiate projects on the
subject of equal opportunities, and promote understanding of
the principles and applications of the four anti-discrimination
ordinances.

Annual Report 2011/12 3k



NRHBRHEES

Public Education and Community Participation

B1997F A - FHEEFHETED
FTEl o SEFEHIEIIN A - HH631H
TEENERLE - BBNARRRERM1,572,570
TL e FTAME2HE SN2 EKE
BEEFHIIRME=R -

RAD BIRE LB

FTHReHOEBLERBAHENES
Mo BMETRBREIRENES - EE
I BRRE  ZELEE RELEE
HriB:E  WRHE THIEMLEES - H/E
T1oERBESZE LB TS0HHERE - )
51 73,873 AL HE o bSN - FFITNE
TT23RINEIESR) - B20125F1 A #E -
THeFTHA—HIHEREREXE -
LIMF20124F3 A R E AR B B 85
BEAR AR EIBAR A INREEE -

FHER2011F7A24BERMREE
RERERTFEHEA] UREEER
TR FERE NS RIERIEG R
% BB SI492500L A 200 -

FHREBED  ETERHMAEILRED
LEEBAL  MAREEREEEE
R ARG AR Bt FIE B R - T
RO FERESEAEE FZENE B
HMEmBCaE BUHRMAFEEEER
MIEHER  AABRAREENT
o R PIERELEREMAERE -

cll

Equal Opportunities Commission P& EE S

The EOC has offered this programme every year since 1997.
This year, we provided $1,572,570 for 63 projects out of 93
applications. The complete list of organisations under the
Community Participation Funding Programme 2011/12 can
be found in Appendix 3.

Outreach to the Ethnic Minority (EM) Groups

The EOC understands the importance of outreaching to
different ethnic minority communities. With members of the
team who are able to communicate in Hindi, Indonesian,
Nepali, Punjabi, Thai and Urdu, the EOC participated in 41
community events, attended 19 networking meetings with
members of community and delivered 50 talks which were
attended by 3,873 participants. In addition to the above, we
also conducted 23 outreach activities. Since January 2012,
the EOC has had a regular column in one of the Indonesian
newspapers. With the Digital Broadcasting Corporation in
operation since last year, beginning in March 2012, we also
started a regular radio segment on the Thai programme on
“Digital We" channel.

Equal Opportunities Day

The EOC staged its Equal Opportunities Day at the Exhibition
Gallery of the Tuen Mun Town Hall on 24 July 2011 to
advance public understanding of equal opportunities and the
anti-discrimination ordinances. This activity was attended by
250 people.

The EOC is mindful of the fact that a number of ethnic
minorities, many of whom reside in the northwest New
Territories area, have difficulty accessing information about
their protection under Hong Kong’s anti-discrimination
ordinances. The EOC is committed to ensuring that everyone
has equal rights to empower themselves through knowledge.
By organising the Equal Opportunities Day, we hoped to
widen access to these important information.
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The day’s activities included talks on equal opportunities,
cultural performances, and informative game booths hosted
by organisations who provide services to ethnic minorities.
The afternoon also featured sharing from the guest mentor,
Mr. Ajmal SAMUEL, the CEO of ASAP Transaction Processing
Corporation Ltd and a “Difference Maker” awardee from the
worldwide Rick Hansen Foundation.

“My Vision of Equal Opportunities” Photo
Competition

To encourage photo enthusiasts to show different aspects
of inclusion and diversity in everyday life to promote equal
opportunities, a photo competition was co-organised with
the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups (HKFYG). By
the deadline on 30 April 2011, we received a total of 259
photo entries from 112 participants, comprising members of
the general public, as well as students from universities and
secondary schools.

The entries were scored by five adjudicators: Ms Garling
Wong, EOC Member; Mr. Amirali Bakirali Nasir, EOC Member
and Mr. Behzad Mirzaei, Co-opted Member of Policy and
Research Committee; Ms Amy Fung, Deputy Executive
Director, Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups; and Mr.
Water Poon, renowned photographer. Based on these scores,
the winners of both the Open and Youth Divisions as well as
the winners of Special Merit Awards were determined. The
prize presentation ceremony was held in January 2012. Our
Career Challenge mentor Ms Prudence Mak, Founder and
Creative Director of Chocolate Rain, was the prize presenter.
A short video showing all the winning photos was screened
during the prize presentation ceremony.

Roving Exhibitions on Accessibility and Universal
Design

This initiative aimed to promote our vision of “access for all”.
From March to June 2011, ten photo exhibitions were held at
public housing estates. The displayed photos are entries from
the “Accessibility and Social Inclusion” photo competition
organised by the Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation, the
Photographic Society of Hong Kong, and the Arts with the
Disabled Association Hong Kong.
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Moreover, from March to August 2012, fourteen roving
exhibitions were held at different MTR stations. These
roving exhibitions on accessibility feature 3-D displays of
the perspectives of four different groups of people. They
are people with visual impairment, people with hearing
impairment, wheelchair users, and elderly people. With this
exhibition, the EOC aims to raise awareness on the benefits
of Universal Design in everyone's daily life and solicit public
support for improving access.

Exhibition at the Hong Kong Book Fair

The EOC joined the Home Affairs Bureau and the Committee
on the Promotion of Civic Education to hold a Civic Education
Exhibition at the Hong Kong Book Fair from 20 to 26 July
2011 to promote the theme of “Cherish yourself and your
family, Love Hong Kong and your country”. The concepts
of equal opportunities and the four anti-discrimination
ordinances were introduced in the exhibition.

Mental Health Month

In keeping with our past practices, we participated in the
annual Mental Health Month in October that was jointly
organised by the Labour and Welfare Bureau, various
government departments, and NGOs. The purpose of the
series of events held during this month was to promote
mental well-being in Hong Kong and remove social stigma
associated with people with mental illness.

Talks

The EOC gave 480 talks and training sessions throughout the
year, and received 55 groups from government departments,
local and overseas NGOs, institutions, and business
organisations. In addition to addressing Hong Kong's anti-
discrimination ordinances, the sessions covered a wide
spectrum of issues related to equal opportunities.
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Educational Resources
On-line Resource Centre

The EOC's website was awarded a Merit Prize in the 2011
Top 10.hk Website Competition for the category of SME
Group organised by the Hong Kong Internet Registration
Corporation Limited. Aside from overall aesthetic and
innovation, one of the judging criteria this year is the new
“Web Care” element, which commends websites catering to
the needs of people with disabilities by facilitating barrier-free
access to the Internet and online information.

The fully bi-lingual (Chinese/English) online resource centre,
continues to drive our promotional activities. It delivers
updated information and assistance to individuals who
want to know more about equal opportunities. Whether
you are a student completing a school project, someone
who had experienced discrimination or a person with visual
impairment or other disability, our website provides a range
of services so that everyone can enjoy equal access to up-to-
date information and advice.
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To step up our public education activities to advance equal
opportunities, we added to our website the media interviews
and sharing sessions with the EOC Chairperson, 28 radio
segments explaining how the anti-discrimination ordinances
are applied, and 54 radio interviews on equal opportunities
issues.

In order to promote accessibility in Hong Kong, a new
webpage entitled “Barrier-free Life” was created. The new
webpage aims to promote barrier-free resources covering
various aspects of life and encourage discussions on different
accessibility issues.

Since the Race Discrimination Ordinance became fully
operative in July 2009, the EOC has progressively translated
key information leaflets and guides in six ethnic minority
languages namely Indonesian, Hindi, Nepali, Tagalog, Thai,
and Urdu and uploaded it to our website.

The website offers a window to view all our activities, and is
becoming increasingly popular with the public. Its monthly hit
rate reached an average of 3.2 million throughout the year.
The site had over 78,000 visitors a month.

Newsletters

The EOC News, our bilingual printed newsletter, includes
analyses of some of the latest complaint cases, feature
stories, interviews, and news on current issues related to
equal opportunities. It has a circulation of over 80,000 and
is available to the public for free with around 12,000 regular
subscribers per issue. It is also available in audio, Braille, and
online versions.
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New Publications

In creating new publications, our focus has been on different
aspects of the anti-discrimination legislation as well as new
developments in the field, with the aim of raising awareness
and providing information and assistance in eliminating
discrimination.

We developed the following publications in 2011/2012:

e Community Participation Funding Programme on Equal
Opportunities booklet (English and Chinese)
e EOC Fact Sheet 2010/2011 (English and Chinese)

e  “Education for All” leaflet in nine languages (English,
Chinese, Indonesian, Hindi, Nepali, Punjabi, Tagalog,
Thai and Urdu)

e Report on the Working Group on Education for Ethnic
Minorities (English and Chinese)

e Revised Code of Practice on Employment under the
Disability Discrimination Ordinance (English and Chinese)

e “What You Should Know as a Real Estate Agent,
Landlord, Tenant, or Home Buyer under Hong Kong's
Anti-Discrimination Ordinances” leaflet in eight
languages (English, Chinese, Indonesian, Hindi, Nepali,
Tagalog, Thai and Urdu)
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Since the EOC training and consultancy services began in
2001, we have conducted over 2,300 training sessions for
more than 136,000 people.

The training demand in 2011/12 remains high. We organised
a total of 400 training sessions for various sectors including
government departments, public bodies, large businesses,
small and medium enterprises, NGOS, ethnic minority groups
and other stakeholders. During the year the training sessions
attracted around 19,000 participants.

From the day the RDO was enacted on 17 July 2008 to 31
March 2012, we have conducted 263 training workshops
on this ordinance for over 14,500 participants representing
ethnic minority communities, NGOs, government
departments, public bodies and private enterprises.

The EOC offers two types of training workshops every
year, namely the calendar training and the customised
training. Two series of calendar training programmes are
organised each year in the spring and autumn. In 2011/12,
we conducted 33 sessions for 815 participants under the
calendar training programmes. We also held 319 customised
training sessions for over 10,400 participants in 2011/12.
Of these, the most popular topic was the anti-discrimination
ordinances, followed by sexual harassment.

Various ethnic minority groups make up about 6% of the
Hong Kong population. They face various barriers to equal
opportunities. To facilitate better understanding of their
rights and address their special needs, the EOC continued

Annual Report 2011/12 G5k
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to provide training workshops for various EM groups. In
addition, customised training for EM community workers
was also arranged to enhance their knowledge on the
anti-discrimination ordinances. 98 workers attended these
customised training courses.

Following the release of the “Formal Investigation Report:
Accessibility in Publicly Accessible Premises” in June 2010,
tailor-made training sessions on accessibility were conducted
for Access Officers as well as other frontline staff from
government bureaux and departments. In addition, the
EOC also held training sessions on “Access for All” under
our calendar training programme, which were open to
participants from both the public and private sectors. In
2011/12, a total of 15 courses were conducted, with over
600 participants.

Government Departments

The Government is the largest employer and service provider
in Hong Kong. Government departments have always been a
major customer of our training services. Some departments,
such as the Food and Environmental Hygiene Department
and the Customs and Excise Department, have included anti-
discrimination ordinances in their regular induction courses
for newly recruited staff members and as a part of their staff
development programmes. Through the co-ordination of the
Civil Service Training and Development Institute of the Civil
Service Bureau, we provided nine workshops on different
topics to civil servants. Some workshops were designated for
new recruits while others were for existing staff members.

In sum, we provided 111 trainings sessions upon request by
individual government departments and public bodies during
the year.
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Training for Human Resources Practitioners

We continue to provide training sessions on Hong Kong's
equal opportunities legislation to human resources
practitioners upon the requests of the Hong Kong Institute
of Human Resources Management (HKIHRM). The training
course forms a part of an accredited programme leading to
a certificate in employment law and employee engagement,
which is a requirement for Professional Membership at the
HKIHRM.

Training for Newly Appointed Principals

Principals play a crucial role in ensuring equal opportunities
in schools as they oversee both staff management and
education. The EOC has provided equal opportunities training
to 535 newly appointed principals by request from the
Education Bureau since 2002. 58 new principals participated
in the training course in 2011/12.

Training for Estate Agents

The Estates Agents Authority, having introduced a
Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Scheme to
raise the professional standards and status of estate agency
practitioners, recognises that equal opportunities knowledge
is important in the day to day practice of the real estate
industry. Equal opportunities legislation has therefore
been included as one of the courses in the CPD Scheme.
Approximately 567 estate agency practitioners participated in
the courses organised this year.
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Training for NGOs and Trade Unions

NGOs and trade unions are our important partners in the
promotion of equal opportunities. In addition to their role of
being the first point of contact for those seeking assistance
when facing discrimination and harassment, they are
responsible for ensuring a workplace free of discrimination
and harassment. The EOC works hand-in-hand with NGOs
and trade unions to put across the message of equal
opportunities by providing training to their clients as well as
their staff members. We provided 104 workshops to various
NGOs and trade unions in 2011/2012.

Online Programme to Prevent Sexual Harassment

In 2011/12, we continued to work with twelve local tertiary
institutions to promote our online training course on
preventing sexual harassment on campus to their students
and staff. As part of our promotion, we distributed posters
and plastic folders to our target users. We also awarded
e-certificates and 4GB USB memory sticks to users who
successfully completed the training module. Since its launch,
around 4,500 students used this online training module.

The training, which explains the definitions and various types
of sexual harassment that could occur in school settings, is
Hong Kong'’s first online self-learning training
module on preventing sexual harassment
on campus. It also illustrates the liabilities of
individuals and educational institutions.

In addition, the EOC organised training
workshops and briefings on preventing sexual
harassment for around 400 university students
and staff during the last school year. The
workshops aimed at helping them gain a deeper
understanding of sexual harassment and the
concept of gender equality.

www.eoc.org.hk:8080/shoncampus

Equal Opportunities Commission P& EE S
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Launching of an Online Training Module for
Children Attending Kindergartens and Child Care
Centres

To encourage parents and preschool teachers to instill the
values of equal opportunities and inclusion in children at an
early age, a new online training module has been produced.
The module contains interactive stories with animation to
cater to different levels of preschoolers. Various online games
and worksheets have also been designed to reinforce the
message of equality.

To facilitate the use of the training module by parents and
teachers, teaching guidelines are included in the package.
Additional teaching tips and practical skills are provided for
parents and teachers to cultivate positive values in children.

A launching ceremony was held on 2 August 2011 to
promote the training module to over 100 kindergarten
principals and teachers.

To tie in with the online training module, a research
study was conducted on “Children’s Concepts on Equal
Opportunities and Discrimination.” The results of the
research indicate that discriminatory attitude can emerge
as early as at the preschool stage. The study results indicate
that certain negative stereotypes, such as “people with dark
skin colors are unkind and cruel,” have already been formed
in the minds of preschool children. Parents and teachers
should take early and persistent action to cultivate the values
of diversity and inclusion in children as well as to teach
them about the negative effects of discrimination while they
are still young. The study also shows that the EOC's new
online training module could help to enhance the concept
of equal opportunities in children. Parents and teachers are
encouraged to extensively use the package for preschoolers.
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Compliments and Complaints

During the period under review, the EOC received 25 written
compliments to and 15 complaints against the EOC. We
concluded the investigation of nine complaints from members
of the public.

( )
iR = E%BZFEEEE’J& #F  Six of the concluded complaints were lodged via
o B6RKRFLEMBHANRE  the Ombudsman. The complainants expressed
iR - RAFARETEHTFH  dissatisfaction with the handling of discrimination
SREBARFOHFIENIEF  complaints and procedures. After investigating into
E’JT\iﬁﬁ RFEEFRIRFE the complaints, all nine complaints were concluded

ZEHMAZENEMAR - H to be unsubstantiated, and no follow-up action
éﬁT’EﬁEEiEﬁEjJ o MImAM - was required. Nevertheless, for the purpose of
BNEKE - FHeTEIED continuous improvement, the EOC took the initiative
HTIENE - B ()RE®E  to institute a number of changes including: (i)
R ERENERELHRFR  arrangement of specific training for the case officers
IR FIERAE - BB ERTHMT  involved in the complaint cases in order to help
BBBRE D ¢ (DEEATHBE  enhance their communication skills; (i) consideration
W RREBAEDIHNAF - B by relevant divisions on not using words such as
HeEHBAKFARERS “frivolous” (albeit in the legal context of the anti-
%FL%@E%UEFHW 1%%  discrimination ordinances) in future replies to

(N2 BEAERIB BRI IAE complainants; (i) arrangement for all calls to verify
Eﬁﬁ%@ﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%%i%% receipt of documents sent to the confidential fax
EEX M UIERAEFEE  line to be immediately answered by relevant staff to
EHEIE - (VIR FEEES  ensure prompt and direct responses; (iv) reminders
B EERERGEERER  given to the EOC's receptionists to clarify the nature
B - ARITHRARFR of the complaint
HE (2 (discrimination or
I 1R 1 F service-related) prior
A2 B to transferring the
e w5 telephone line to
BRANK appropriate officers
El for handling.

\_ W,
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BEoENOE Stakeholders’ Feedback

LEBRBAE I highly appreciate the case

B R N1 % officers who had done a good With your M o E
/mfiiﬂ” %% job fo‘r properly handling and soread the mesage of bringin iﬂ; 3 L 17 f]j %
A "F‘fk? 2 M assessing my case. It made me equality is highly acmeve;’ ,,, B EE R
% 4% d sleep well at night. EOC promotes More students are apje 1o b /‘n‘ ; % +‘ 50 A
% equa/‘opportun/tles for all, touch with the e ;& L? . iuﬁ 17
making H?ng Kong a more a wider perspective. o v j ur}ﬁ ﬁ?i\ 7% &iifaﬁ
us the opportunity to learn ang A ; % 1 16] ;f;

8row as socially responsiple ez 2 4 4

individuals in our society. BOX B 4 &
4 = B 'g
1209 — 2% o

e 1P o TR Ak Thanks to the EOC staff who
5 ently listened to our

P TR patl

rawE o LR statutory funct:ons of the i T e Z x

i % % 5 A B ) andgaveme cleor i h i 7 \w;R : Your sharing is great. 1t

PR e i doesn’t only help me to

- 5 2 33 Al appreciate your work attitude i - prudently deal with the

ié;?/ﬁl/j«\—’;éﬂ SNl passion to bring aboul fz: ij;;; '& 81€y.area which | may face
social justice. T m fj work, but also Jets

eflect on the meanings
“discrimination” and
“offense”.

14 %

—

jYwmwwmmMMMnmm SR E g o s

- pragmatic examples was very — BBl F SR BhaENSEMHTE THRME IS - IR
BPIZETEGE - Bk o ELREE - 4

WEFERMIIELAEOE - SERMESR

£ N o

informative and useful, definitely 4 % 5 - %82
enhanced our participants on M ARy iy
the knowledge and technique T RFEHREE R G

in handling sick leave issues in P B8 4% S0 2K B 4% &
The well-intended criticism spurs us to

constantly improve and work towards the
fulfillment of our vision. At the same time,

employment. We have received 32 5 ;% YRR G PLE )
exceptionally positive feedback in W EF 2 4

particular from some human B L WEIE .

resource managers upon MAT3E AR R compliments received from our stakeholders

Yyour presentation, 07 KB give us a boost and encourage us to make
19§ o every effort to fulfill our mission.
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The EOC Named a Caring Organisation

The EOC has been named a Caring Organisation for the year
2011/12 by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for our
commitment in caring for the community, employees and
the environment. The EOC staff have participated in on-
going volunteer work. The Caring Organisation and Caring
Company Logos are awarded to organisations for their efforts
to promote corporate social responsibility. The EOC is proud
to be recognised as we endeavour to further our mission and
values through good corporate citizenship.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Staff Volunteer Programme

EOC volunteers had a productive year in 2011/12. The
volunteers had spent more than 600 hours serving the
community in 2011, and were awarded a Silver Certificate
by the Social Welfare Department. Three volunteers were
individually awarded Bronze Certificates for having done over
50 hours of community service during the whole calendar
year. Our volunteering activities included organising and
participated in the Stargaze Camp which attracted more than
1,000 participants who are people with disability from Hong
Kong, Guangzhou and Macau,
and accompanying students with
severe intellectual disability to
a theme park and a number of
outings.

Annual Report 2011/12 3 9]
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Through these activities, the EOC volunteer team has put into
action the Commission’s values and mission of “creating a
pluralistic and inclusive society”.

Fund-raising Activities

In 2011/12, EOC staff members participated in 14 fund-
raising events, including flag-selling for various NGOs,
cookie selling, Dress Special Day and Skip Lunch Day for the
Community Chest, as well as a donation activity for AIDS
Concern.

Environmental Protection Measures

The EOC strives to maintain operational standards and
practices which respect the protection of the environment.
We have implemented a number of measures to reduce
waste and promote recycling, and to operate as a more
environmentally-friendly organisation. These efforts included
using a Document Management System to reduce the use
of paper for filing; encouraging staff to print only when
necessary and on both sides of paper; using environmentally-
friendly papers; and arranging the recycling of used paper.

In addition, the EOC has been consistently making an effort
to conserve energy, which was evidenced in the fact that
there was only a 2.3% year-on-year increase in electricity
charges despite the fact that electricity tariffs rose by 6.3% in
2012. The EOC will continue to pursue other environmentally-
friendly measures to ensure that we are doing our part
towards a greener world.
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Staff Development and Staff
Retention

The EOC’s practices to ensure staff retention included
encouraging management with transparency; establishing
open communication between management and staff;
holding regular staff consultative meetings; providing
continuing education and training; and instituting an
employee assistance programme.

Management with Transparency

Regular Meetings were held among senior management
staff, with the discussions and decisions made known to all
EOC employees to increase transparency and understanding
of the work of different divisions. Regular divisional and unit
meetings were held to ensure effective communication.

An annual staff outing and other informal gatherings were
held to enhance communication among staff outside daily
work routines.

Staff Consultative Group (SCG)

This group consists of management representatives,
appointed by the Chairperson, and staff representatives,
elected by the staff. Its purpose is to provide a recognised
and direct channel of communication and consultation on
issues that affect the interests of EOC staff. It also aims to
promote a spirit of co-operation in securing and improving
the EOC's efficiency in delivering
services to clients. The SCG
also enables employees to
have a better understanding of
the EOC's policies, aims, and
reasoning behind its decisions.
SCG Meetings are held regularly.

o st ELLLLL
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Intranet

The Intranet is a platform to provide information and updates
from the various divisions/units of the EOC. Some examples
include the EOC Activities Calendar, which lists the major
functions and activities held by the EOC, including committee
meetings, EOC-funded activities, the in-house training
schedule, and visitors to the EOC. Reference materials are
also available on the Intranet to give staff useful information
and updates on the work of other divisions. It also provides
easy access for staff to download commonly used or
administrative forms.

Staff Training

Continuing education and training is provided throughout
each person’s employment in the EOC, from an orientation
programme for new staff to various in-house or external
training and development programmes during the course of
employment.

Various seminars by external speakers were organised on
different topics to enhance the EOC staff's work-related
knowledge and widen their exposure to new information.
The topics covered included managing organisational cultural
change, managing complaints with high-conflict clients
and mental health “first aid”. A workshop on improving
mediation skills was held with an expert speaker from the
New Zealand Human Rights Commission. Staff engagement
seminars were also arranged with the EOC Board Members as
speakers.

Skill-specific training is also regularly set up staff performing
different functions, such as mediation practice for staff from
the Operations Division, legal seminars for staff from the
Legal Service Division, and technology training for staff from
the IT Section. Moreover, a two-day customised Leadership
Alignment Programme was organised for senior staff, in
order to ensure their cultural and professional consistency
with the EOC's overall objectives and expectations.
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The EOC also encourages life-long learning through
an established policy on sponsoring courses under the
Continuing Education Fund.

Employee Assistance Programme

Starting from April 2011, the EOC engaged an external
consultant to conduct its employee assistance programme.
The programme aims to help staff to manage the diverse
needs of their work and personal life in order to achieve
good work-life balance. It includes a 24-hour hotline which
provides professional counselling services and various
resources and information to staff. A number of wellness
seminars were also held in the year on topics of interest,
including improving sleep quality and stress management.
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Equal Opportunities Commission
Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

Independent auditor’s report to the Commission
Members of Equal Opportunities Commission
(Established in Hong Kong pursuant to the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Equal
Opportunities Commission (“the Commission”) set out on
pages 99 to 124, which comprise the statement of assets and
liabilities as at 31 March 2012, the statement of income and
expenditure, statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in funds and cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The Commission’s responsibility for the financial
statements

The Commission is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such
internal control as the Commission determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Commission, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Commission as at 31 March
2012 and of its surplus and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 August 2012
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Statement of income and expenditure
for the year ended 31 March 2012

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

&t Note 2012 2011
L ON Income
BT fH B Government subventions 3 88,017,132 77,723,122
EEFAERANREE Reimbursement of costs from legal
litigation - 1,100
HUWA Other income 1,879,144 1,528,789
|_.89,896.276 | 79,253,011
T Expenditure
Ea=Ezai| Staff salaries 46,133,874 43,308,303
BEAmME - HaEH & Staff gratuity, other benefits and
=35l allowances 16,616,864 14,962,366
RiE SR Mandatory provident fund contributions 958,232 969,328
REAFBRNESRZ Increase/(decrease) in provision for
#ECRd) unutilised annual leave 37,686 (9,596)
ARER Legal fees 1,767,156 902,557
EERABHEZ L Publicity and public education expenses 7,674,199 6,440,196
KEREEARHBESH Publicity and public education expenses
EERABHELL financed by capital subvention fund 8 = (119,400)
B R B ERIE Research projects and training modules 504,134 554,679
R AEYER Operating lease rentals in respect of
LEHERS office premises 10,302,713 9,497,903
e Depreciation 4 1,658,631 2,038,403
B B 7K K2 9NE Staff local and overseas visits,
kg conferences and training 201,973 198,196
ZE RN Auditor’s remuneration 83,910 79,920
H th e R Z A RUE S 1B Impairment loss on other receivables 6(b) - 767,677
H b & A Other operating expenses 2,614,555 2,273,011
| 88,553,927 | 81,863,543
BREERS(BR) Surplus/(deficit) for the year 12 1,342,349 (2,610,532)

10421248 2 MR ATBIHRERH—ED -

The notes on pages 104 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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ZHEHKER Statement of comprehensive income
BE-FT——F for the year ended 31 March 2012
Z=A=+—HIBBEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(P BB A T A BT

LZEgRE—MEYIWFELM - BRIB  The Commission had no components of comprehensive
BEE R (EE) JLIMEREZMEY  income other than “surplus/(deficit) for the year” in either of
mEMEKIER - At - ZE2XMESE  the periods presented. Accordingly, no separate statement
EHEEE HAEZY2EKEEK - £ of comprehensive income is presented as the Commission’s
BEgM2EBRABE M BBFEER  “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus/
g (E18) 148MRE - (deficit) for the year” in both periods.

F1042 1248 2 W AR IEHREKN—3D - The notes on pages 104 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of assets and liabilities

as at 31 March 2012

(FTEEERI BT RENL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
#iiE Note 2012 2011
BE ASSETS
RBEE Non-current asset
s - MBS KRG Property, plant and equipment 4 1,833,867 1,889,979
MENEE Current assets
F’%H&Eﬁ(ﬁ?ﬁ'\]ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ Unutilised annual leave subventions
FREE receivable from the Government 2,549,677 2,511,991
ﬁﬁﬂﬂqu%‘? Emek Other receivables, deposits and
N e prepayments 6 4,538,439 4,209,312
Tmﬁﬁiiﬂﬂlﬁ ) Bank deposits with original maturity
RITER over three months 23,301,664 23,074,871
B4 RIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 7 18,144,781 20,755,348
| ....48,534,561 | 50,551,522
BMEE Total assets 50,368,428 52,441,501
afE LIABILITIES
FRBEME Non-current liability
B B 40N F0 X Provision for staff gratuity 9 3,572,114 3,029,861
3,572,114 3,029,861
FEEE Current liabilites |77
BB KmBN & r2EHE Provision for staff gratuity 9 4,376,509 10,465,950
RE R F RS Provision for unutilised annual leave 2,549,677 2,511,991
TR T B Government subventions received in
advance 3 12,885,970 12,656,416
H b e RIE M At B Other payables and accruals 10 4,586,949 2,722,423
_____ 24,399,105 | 28,356,780
e Total liabilities 27,971,219 31,386,641
2 FUNDS
FEE Reserves 12 22,397,209 21,054,860
RES Total funds | 22,397,209 | 21,054,860
HWESRER Total funds and liabilities 50,368,428 52,441,501
201298 H17 B #L/EI Approved and authorised for issue on
BN A BIRE 17 August 2012 by
MIGERK T E HEBLZtL (RN E
Mr LAM Woon kwong Ms Susanna CHIU Lai-kuen Miss Kerrie TENG
: ;z\ =+ o ?TIBZ&E]T%%#E/J\%HE%/\ @E-I_Efﬁ
Chairperson of the Comm|55|on Convener of the Administration and Finance Committee Accountant

10421248 2 M RAT IR —ED -

The notes on pages 104 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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EeBHx
BE-T——=F

Statement of changes in funds
for the year ended 31 March 2012

=A=+—H1LEBHEE (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(FrBE S NB TR ERL)

WX #EE R
Statement of
income and i wy
expenditure Reserves Total
(Ktat12)
(note 12)
7"R201054481H At 1 April 2010 - 23,665,392 23,665,392
201020 FEESEE : Changes in funds for 2010/2011:
HRFEEER Deficit and total comprehensive
ZHW AL income for the year (2,610,532) - (2,610,532)
B Transfer 2,610,532 (2,610,532) =
A20114%3H31H At 31 March 2011 = 21,054,860 21,054,860
M20115F481H At 1 April 2011 — 21,054,860 21,054,860
201172012 EE & B 5 : Changes in funds for 2011/2012:
MIRFERBR Surplus and total comprehensive
ZHERAEEE income for the year 1,342,349 = 1,342,349
BB Transfer (1,342,349) 1,342,349 =
R201253H31H At 31 March 2012 - 22,397,209 22,397,209

F10421248 2 W ARV I HREN—5 5 o The notes on pages 104 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 March 2012

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Hf#E Note 2012 2011
BETER Operating activities
BREFEERR(EE) Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,342,349 (2,610,532)
PR Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 1,658,631 2,038,403
FBUA Interest income (463,708) (228,126)
H oA WUR FRAY R E &S 1R Impairment loss on other receivables - 767,677
BESSBER Operating surplus/(deficit) before
KeEmes /(EE) changes in working capital 2,537,272 (32,578)
JE WATIER I ) 40 v B <2 Decrease in gratuity subventions
#Bh 2 Bk receivable from the Government = 67,562
JFE U i 9 R £5E FR (Increase)/decrease in unutilised annual
EREB 2 (L) R leave subventions receivable from the
Government (37,686) 9,596
HEmpEiRR - Ze &k Increase in other receivables, deposits
TBATFRIB 2 38 0 and prepayments (287,938) (621,514)
H b TR IE & FE T Increase/(decrease) in other payables
BRzm/ Ond) and accruals 415,700 (2,441,294)
%E%ﬁ,ﬁi%\%%ﬁ1ﬁ2 (Decrease)/increase in provision for staff
) 1N gratuity (5,547,188) 3,491,928
ﬂiﬁﬁ% FROEFZ Increase/(decrease) in provision for
#on,Crd) unutilised annual leave 37,686 (9,596)
TEULBR TR B 2 3B N Increase in Government subventions
received in advance 229,554 5,740,358
EARMBES Z Decrease in capital subvention fund = (119,400)
EEEA) BN Net cash (used in)/generated from
HERA operations (2,652,600) 6,085,062
RETEE Investing activities
EKHE Interest received 422,519 194,025
TR ER A3 ME A &Y Increase in bank deposits with original
RITIFRZIE N maturity over three months (226,793)|  (23,074,871)
NRBEYSF Payment for the purchase of property,
eI plant and equipment (153,693) (7,991)
REZBFREE(BH) 2 Net cash generated from/(used in)
HEREA investing activities 42,033 (22,888,837)

RERBASEEYZRD

FHOZRERBEEEY

FRZRERREEEY

F104E 1248 2 Wit BRI HRz A —EB5D

Decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year

(2,610,567) (16,803,775)
20,755,348 37,559,123
18,144,781 20,755,348
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The notes on pages 104 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Background

Equal Opportunities Commission (“the Commission”)
is a statutory body set up in 1996 to implement the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability Discrimination
Ordinance, the Family Status Discrimination Ordinance and
the Race Discrimination Ordinance. The Commission works
towards the elimination of discrimination on the grounds
of sex, marital status, pregnancy, disability, race and family
status. The Commission also aims to eliminate sexual
harassment and harassment and vilification on the grounds
of disability and promote equality of opportunities between
men and women, between persons with and without a
disability, between people of different races and irrespective
of family status.

The Commission is established by statute in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 19/F, Cityplaza Three, 14
Taikoo Wan Road, Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Commission is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (continued)
Commission. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Commission’s financial statements:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

The impacts of these developments are discussed below:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the Commission has re-
assessed the identification of related parties and
concluded that the revised definition does not have
any material impact on the Commission’s related
party disclosures in the current and previous years.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures. These amendments do
not have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurements of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements in the current
and previous years.

The Commission has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 17).
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Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(0

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenditure. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Shorter of lease
term or 6 years
5 and 3 years
respectively

7 years

3 and 4 years
respectively

6 years

Leasehold improvements
Office furniture and equipment

Motor vehicles
Computer software and hardware

Simultaneous interpretation and
public address equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for indications of impairment at each
balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognised to
the extent that the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is more than
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an
asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.
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Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the statement of income and expenditure
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of income and expenditure on
a straight-line basis over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term.

Other receivables

Other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts, except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
recognised when there is objective evidence of
impairment and are measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate where the effect of
discounting is material.

Other payables and accruals

Other payables and accruals are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits
(i)  Employee leave and gratuity entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and gratuities
are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for
untaken annual leave and gratuities as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the year end
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)  Pension obligations

The Commission has established a mandatory
provident fund scheme (“"MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held in separate trustee-administered funds. The
Commission has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Commission has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. When the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.




2 FESEEER(E)
() BAmRER

(i)

(i)

BB

40 gE & 1 HE E # B IR
2 ARESHERINE
&l - AR BERERER

B E A BB B R B A
PEBEREEAEDES
N WHERAMBIITE M
{E R AR 2 10 B AT Ko
REBEERLE -

13

ERFRE R ERIE
SRR AR F R E R A
FEEST WOk R B R,

o

AR
PSR AR ERAIE %
BitHR -

FETRUWA
TR AE DA B BT B

27
TN

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income recognition

()

(i)

(iii)

Government subventions

Subventions from the Government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the subventions will be received
and the Commission will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government subventions relating to specific projects
are included in the capital subvention fund and are
deferred and recognised in the statement of income
and expenditure over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Reimbursement of costs from legal litigation
Reimbursement of costs from legal litigation is
recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Sundry income
Sundry income is recognised on an accrual basis.
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Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Commission if that person:

(a)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Commission;

has significant influence over the Commission;
or

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Commission.

An entity is related to the Commission if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

The entity and the Commission are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Related parties (continued)
(continued)

(b)

(iv)

(vii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Commission or an entity related to the
Commission.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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Government subventions/Government subventions
received in advance

Government subventions represent the funds granted by
the Government for the Commission’s services. Government
subventions are received in advance in connection with
various services to be provided after year end.

3 BUFREBFRURBUT B

BFABRRBFERTZE SR
HIRBHNES - BRBF#EBEE
B4 B & IR A B R
TAUWHIFRIR ©

EHNBTHBEE RS EERA

Reconciliation between Government subventions granted

KBS R Bh ¥R K - and Government subventions in the statement of income and
expenditure:
2012 2011
B U S HE R BT #7 BD Government subventions granted
for the year 88,209,000 83,540,638
PFE Adjustments for:
JEMLBURT 89 40 ok B <2 70 B 2 R Decrease in gratuity subventions
receivable from Government - (67,562)
REBEB 2L, CRL) Increase/(decrease) in provision
for unutilised annual leave 37,686 (9,596)
TEURET 5 B 2 38 N Increase in Government
subventions received in advance (229,554) (5,740,358)
FEW ST S E R NH BT B Government subventions in the
statement of income and
expenditure 88,017,132 77,723,122

1 1 4 Equal Opportunities Commission SFZ#E2ZE &




Y - BB RRIE

Property, plant and equipment

HEER
BOEGA EREMR CEY
RiE B4  Simultaneous
HENE Office Computer  interpretation
b4 furniture HE software  and public
Leasehold and Motor and address ay
improvements  equipment vehicles hardware  equipment Total
R Cost:
W201064 718 At 1 April 2010 7,192,892 4,533,079 819,601 5,454,095 481,043 18,480,710
#E Additions 1,700 5,793 - 498 - 7,991
il Disposals - (1,494) - (10,948) = (12,442)
#20114£34318 At 31 March 2011 7,194,592 4,537,378 819,601 5,443,645 481,043 18,476,259
W2011F4A18 At 1 April 2011 7,194,592 4,537,378 819,601 5,443,645 481,043 18,476,259
e Additions 1,489,847 27,860 - 84,812 - 1,602,519
i Disposals - (63,549) - - - (63,549)
12012837318 At 31 March 2012 8,684,439 4,501,689 819,601 5,528 457 481,043 20,015,229
ZRHNE Accumulated depreciation:
W201064 718 At 1 April 2010 4,705,010 4198372 439,097 4,808,055 409,785 14,560,319
EEIfE Charge for the year 1,195,738 226471 117,086 464,034 35074 2,038,403
RYEED Written back on disposals - (1,494) - (10,948) - (12,442)
#20114E3A318 At 31 March 2011 5,900,748 4,423,349 556,183 5,261,141 444 859 16,586,280
P2011F4A18 At 1 April 2011 5,900,748 4,423,349 556,183 5,261,141 444,859 16,586,280
FEAE Charge for the year 1,237,567 92,615 117,086 181,803 29,560 1,658,631
RYEEE Written back on disposals = (63,549) = = - (63,549)
120124837318 At 31 March 2012 7,138,315 4,452,415 673,269 5,442,944 474419 18,181,362
BHFE: Net ook value:
1201246374318 At 31 March 2012 1,546,124 49,274 146,332 85,513 6,624 1,833,867
P03 8318 At31 March 2011 1,293,844 114,029 263418 182,504 36,180 1889979
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Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

JE WSS B 49 7 B < 16 B Gratuity subventions receivable from the
Government
2012 2011
M4R18 At 1 April - 67,562
FERNERR /B Subvention recognised for the year 8,444,681 7,466,031
B AT A0 BN & F B Gratuity subventions received from
the Government (8,444,681) (7,533,593)
M3A31H8 At 31 March = =

ERRBAKEHETZEGRES
HimNE T ENES

This represents funds to be reimbursed by the Government
in respect of gratuity payments to employees of the
Commission.

HEWIRR - RERBAEN Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
EhIE
FA
2012 2011
& RIEMF0E Deposits and prepayments 4,329,555 4,069,470
H Ath fEUR IR 3R Other receivables 976,561 907,519
o RIRE Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (767,677) (767,677)
208,884 139,842
4,538,439 4,209,312

Bri%$£2,846,976 0 (20114 « &)
TEHER —F A IR EISN - B HA
FEUIR R ~ 2 e RIE FIETE R
—F R -

1 1 6 Equal Opportunities Commission SFZ#E2ZE &

All of the other receivables, deposits and prepayments
are expected to be recovered within one year except for
deposits of $2,846,976 (2011: $Nil) which are expected to be
recovered after more than one year.
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Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
(continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of third party other receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

2012 2011

RBHAFRE

R 78 B sl R (B O B R TS
F=7 REE=HEAHR
BHERGCLEE ©

B {ts FER E BB
FRREEEHEH (BIEME
RIREREIETS T

(b)

Neither past due nor impaired 208,884 139,842

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to third parties for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Impairment of other receivables

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

2012 2011
M2011/20104 818 At 1 April 2011/2010 767,677 =
B R AR EE 8 Impairment loss recognised = 767,677
M3A31H At 31 March 767,677 767,677
RZE——F=HA=+—8" At 31 March 2012, the Commission’s other receivables

ZESER@EMNEEAREN
H fth & Y2 R 18 & 767,677 7T
(20114 : 767,6777T) ° f&R
BB EUIRIEEE =8
HEBRR#EERE  BEEEF
fty + BB TREHURE - At -
ZESERRARKRSEEHS
%8767,6777T °

of $767,677 (2011: $767,677) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to a third party for which the
recoverability as assessed by management is uncertain.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of
$767,677 were recognised.
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B iR R M Notes to the financial statements
(FTESEE AE T BB AL (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
7 REeERBEESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents
2012 2011
RITRTFRRE Bank balances and cash 3,862,560 3,656,416
RATF SR B R A3 1E A &9 Short-term bank deposits with
%2 ERRITE R original maturity not more than
three months 14,282,221 17,098,932
Re RIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 18,144,781 20,755,348
FEFRERS Major non-cash transaction

BHZE2012F3A31HIEFE - £8  The Commission made a provision of $1,448,826 for
2YEH 71,448,826 LEEIZERETE  additions of fixed assets during the year ended 31 March

BE © 2012.
8 EXwmpES Capital subvention fund

BRI
BN E R
Sector targeted
training materials
7R2010F4H1H At 1 April 2010 119,400

R EERERBAL Transfer to the statement of income and expenditure

REEERABRHEXR L as income to match with publicity and public

education expenses (119,400)

2011438318 » 2011F4A1B & At 31 March 2011, 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012

201243 H31H =

BB ESEMFESSIEE  The capital subvention fund represents the unutilised balance

BINAREROELCEUBNERSE  of non-current Government capital subvention received for

Bhigsh - WIEESEEWRAEER  spedial projects. The funds are released to the statement of

TERWA - ABL & BB o income and expenditure as income to match with the related
costs.
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BE VR EHER

Provision for staff gratuity

2012 2011
7A2011/20105E4 18 At 1 April 2011/2010 13,495,811 10,003,883
B Provisions made 8,658,856 8,208,900
BUH Forfeitures (214,175) (742,869)
BRFEEE X Nz&5E Amount paid during the year (13,991,869) (3,974,103)
M3H318 At 31 March 7,948,623 13,495,811
B RENER D Less: Current portion (4,376,509) (10,465,950)
JEmENED 1D Non-current portion 3,572,114 3,029,861

BEAOMMENERBRR T XA
XEAHEADTEN=ZFEHZZ
BeEBMAMME MRIZA

Provision for staff gratuity is set up for the gratuity payments
which will be payable to employees of the Commission who
complete their three-year contracts commencing from the

date of their employment.

HitEStRIBERETER Other payables and accruals

2012 2011
HAbFERIRIE Other payables 2,162,329 1,792,901
FEETE Accrued expenses 2,344,949 875,204
TEW IR Receipts in advance 79,671 54,318

4,586,949 2,722,423

EEBERANER Provision for legal fees

2012 2011
7#2011/201054 A 1H At 1 April 2011/2010 = =
B Provisions made 1,767,156 902,557
WBFEFEESXN 2258 Amount paid during the year (1,767,156) (902,557)
R3A318 At 31 March = -

FREANERRERNEHZE SR
HamE B SR AR FDRS
REVERFAX MR - EE R
A N & B BUR B8 Bl AR B FA R
HER

Provision for legal fees is set up for legal expenses to be
incurred in respect of litigation raised by or against the
Commission. The timing and amount to be utilised will
depend on the progress of the respective litigation.
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Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Reserves
2012 2011
72011/20105F4H1H At 1 April 2011/2010 21,054,860 23,665,392
Rl B RE A () Transfer from/(to) statement of
income and expenditure 1,342,349 (2,610,532)
R3A31H At 31 March 22,397,209 21,054,860

mE)

ERBREES -8B 8
ﬁiﬁ—f EXB M RERE
SN B ERE - BMRFEER
RRFEEAE—RAE Z8E
ﬁ%@ﬁ@ﬁﬁtﬁﬁﬁqﬂ’ﬂuﬁﬁ ° b b
RAZES NMETBRFEFFNK

HHEEBM25% - MM EWE - #
25 KRR IR EFRR - AR ERTAY
EEER - E—MBFEERERR
f7K T AR R B _EFR B R IE IR
fF - BRERBBS A EBRE
EWEROIE - BRI LA
EBREEWER  KEAUKS

3 M RO
Eivh ]]]E) m:]% m

The Commission defines reserves as Total Funds. The
Commission’s primary objectives when managing its funds
are to safeguard the Commission’s ability to continue as
a going concern. The reserves at the end of the financial
year are available for general use and can be spent at the
discretion of the Commission within the reserve ceiling,
which is capped at 25% of the Commission’s annual
recurrent subvention of the next financial year, plus the net
book value of property, plant and equipment less accrued
reinstatement cost. The level of reserves at the end of the
previous financial year exceeding the reserve ceiling would
need to be returned to the Government, except with the
approval of the Permanent Secretary for Constitutional and

BhkEERRREBIRSEERLR - Mainland Affairs (“PSCMA") or the reserve ceiling is raised
by PSCMA following consultation with the Secretary for
Financial Services and the Treasury.
FEE TR Key management compensation
2012 2011
B E B Employee benefits 11,715,662 10,600,712
IS B4 SR 1E 1@ ) Post-employment benefits 2,125,931 1,897,706
13,841,593 12,498,418

1 20 Equal Opportunities Commission SFZ#E2ZE &
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(a) EARMEAE
REEEAYE  BBERRER
TEMTS A IR BOEEN 2012

Taxation

The Commission is a government subvented body exempted
from payment of all taxes administered by the Inland Revenue
Department by virtue of the Inland Revenue Ordinance
(Chapter 112).

Commitments

(a) Capital commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2012 in
respect of property, plant and equipment at the balance

FIANBARERMAENT - sheet date not provided for in these financial statements
were as follows:
2012 2011
B4 Contracted for 109,910 23,600

(b) ZEHEEFAE
R_E——F=A=+—AH5
B mBRHAEEFIAHEE
ZEBHESNESNRE

(b) Operating lease commitments
At 31 March 2012, the total future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of office premises are payable as follows:

MERRERERT
2012 2011
INIESAE (R Within 1 year 9,736,272 5,254,496
E1FE5F NS After 1 year but within 5 years 16,619,712 =
26,355,984 5,254,496

16 MBEREERAAEBE
R EEAMEHRRIERE SN
Bk FBEE NAZENEFIES
77 ETEATT o BARS ARG B AN R4 B 75
Rk REENEREEIEREF
BETE - PR EER - £RT
B0ER - URBINREEEZNKR
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Financial risk management and fair values

Risk management is carried out by the finance department
under the procedural guidelines approved by the Members
of the Administration and Finance Committee of the
Commission. The finance department identifies and evaluates
financial risks and provides procedural guidelines for overall
risk management such as interest-rate risk, use of financial
instruments and investing excess liquidity.



B E

Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5o 5 i a B
(FTE BRI T R ENL)

16 MHEBREERAAMBE

Financial risk management and fair values

(#&) (continued)

é%ﬁﬁﬂﬁkf’ﬁ : jtT\ibF&ﬁl\lil—L The Commission’s activities do not expose it to foreign
B ERRKRE € EEE R exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. For interest-

B’\ﬂ?ﬂf& : Izﬂz:zlmﬂ+a+iﬁ“u rate risk, except for the short-term bank deposits which

BHEHRITFERI  ZESL bear interest at market rates, the Commission has no other

HBERGFEEERBE - Ilit : significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities. Accordingly,

é%ﬁﬂ/‘]u&)\&ﬁéﬁfﬁi/mijﬁ nB
SBFETENEEBNTE - A
ﬁ%ﬁé’ﬂfﬁimi)&@fﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ

the Commission’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates
and the exposure to cash flow and fair value interest rate risk is

B IR o low.
(a) FERMR (a) Credit risk
ZEgNEERBREIEKRENR The Commission’s credit risk is primarily attributable

T RREEFEY - ZREEERE
B R RN S REIBTEIER
T NEEREEERR - £
RPN EEFRRYE - £8
STRREEMELTREE
TEEBITRIME -

ZEEMAZNERERR LR
REERBERTERASHMEE

to cash and cash equivalents. Cash is deposited with
financial institutions with sound credit ratings to
minimise credit exposure. Given their high credit ratings,
the Commission does not expect any of these financial
institutions will fail to meet their obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the

WIREE% - ZEGLBREM balance sheet. The Commission does not provide any
ERAISIHEERAZEER guarantees which would expose the Commission to
REHEIR credit risk.

(b) E£FHEER (b) Liquidity risk
ZEENBREEHE fﬁfﬁﬁi The Commission’s policy is to regularly monitor its
MEGANESAEFTE - U current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure

1%%’&%%&’]1%@15%1%%1#@%
ERERHANESAEHER -

1 22 Equal Opportunities Commission SFZ#E2ZE &

that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.




16 BBEREERAAEE
(%)

(b) E=FERE(E)
TRHAMZESSHBBEES
BERZRBREHNED - TIR
BAMBAEANASRNEZES
ARER B RN R 2 & F A B

(continued)

Financial risk management and fair values

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Commission’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the

B . Commission can be required to pay:
2012
REBENESR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—FHE MENL
—E0T EmENT ERFELT
HEEEE  Morethan  More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but RE£HE
1yearor  lessthan less than @i Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
BEAmHENER Provision for staff gratuity 4,376,509 1,389,981 2,182,133 7,948,623 7,948,623
REFFREOERE Provision for unutilised annual leave 2,549,677 - - 2,549,677 2,549,677
TBRBHEE Government subventions received in
advance 12,885,970 - - 12,885,970 12,885,970
At EFHIRIE RE B R Other payables and accruals 4,586,949 - - 4586949 4,586,949
24,399,105 1,389,981 2,182,133 27,971,219 27,971,219
2011
RERANRETR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—FpE REM L
—ENUT E@MENT  ERENUT
FEAEEE  Morethan  More than
Within -~ 1yearbut 2 years but RESHE
1 year or less than less than @5t Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
BENRHSHNER Provision for staff gratuity 10,465,950 2,607,632 422,229 13495811  13,495811
AERFBROEE Provision for unutilised annual leave 2,511,991 - - 2511,991 2,511,991
LR Government subventions received in
advance 12,656,416 - - 12,656,416 12,656,416
HipERIEERETER Other payables and accruals 2,722,423 = - 2722423 2,722,423
28,356,780 2,607,632 422,229 31,386,641 31,386,641
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BEREERAAEE

(%&)

(0 FIZ=Eps
BRRE DT
EETBE FIREE A 1001E
BEE o mMEMEEHHESST
2 AZEgNRARZRTE
eHR-_ZTE——F=A=+—H
B 212 I1#47414,000c( =
——%F : 438,0007T) °

Ll SRR E DT T RERF R A
SEYNEEH LRI E ARG
HEZHEGFENSB T ANFIE
[BBx o 1008 FHYIE NI E -
EERENHEET —EAFE
MEEBBREATRELIENE
BMEFREE) - 201 1FERDHT
TEARIE il BT -

(d) FiELRIEAMNSEEER
E——FRZIT—ZF=
=+—HHNAREBEITES
=8 o

BE-—_E——F=A=+—

HiEFESTHECEMRE

el R A VIS ET ~ STERIR

RETREERNE

HEABKRERAMBHL &

BEHMASEBMEEEBIR

AR ERBE-_T——F=A8

=+—BIEFEERER  ATH

R IR B RINZ EFER o

ZESRENARFEITHERE
AEEMEKRNTE - 28 A&
Ik ZEERRRMZFIER] Al
BRI IERTOHE - B KA
BEH X B g 208 R BB R
BEATE -
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Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase the
Commission’s income and funds by approximately
$414,000 (2011: $438,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis points increase
represents management'’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.

(d) All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2012 and 2011.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective for
the year ended 31 March 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2012 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.

The Commission is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Commission’s results of operations and financial
position.
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FHEEEMMEESINEERCHE(H2011F4818£201253A310)
Attendance Record of EOC Committee Meetings for the period
1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012

BETFHKEHNERET FZFWFI According to the EOC's procedures for meetings, cancelled

HBERE—EARNEFLHES—2  meetings are to be rescheduled as soon as possible and

& WNEITT  BEAFAREWLIEE  within one month. If not possible, the Convenor is to decide

ExRXZEEEH - LWEFERSKIERLZ  which agenda items should be circulated for advice or

Z ARBLIEE A AHEZ T XEH  information, and which items can be pushed back to the next
BAER © regular meeting.

THEMKESE BN LELEE
Attendance Record of Administration and Finance Committee (A&FC) Meetings
BB FE R {81892 %

Overall attendance was over 92 %

HEEZE(BEAN)
Ms CHIU Lai-Kuen, Susanna (Convenor)

) HEEFE(BIBEA)GET) v NEA TE A NEA
Prof. Randy CHIU (Deputy Convenor) (Note 1) N/A N/A N/A
RSzt (RIE&EA) s

3 Ms CHAN Ka-mun, Carmen, JP (Deputy 7 v 7

Abs.
Convenor)

& Mr. LEE Luen-fai v v v v

> Mr. LUI Tim-leung, Tim, BBS, JP Abs. v v v

. WA T T T
The Hon TSE Wai-chun, Paul v N/A N/A

(3% Note 2)

5 FoKERE L N3 R v v %
Dr. TSE Wing-ling, John, MH N/A (7 Note 3)

8 DEREGET) TEA TEA TiE A
Mr. Saeed UDDIN, BBS, MH (Note 1) v N/A N/A N/A

9 IR S v v v v

Mr. LAM Woon-kwong, GBS, JP

# Note 1:  {EHRIZE201145 198 &R
Appointment up to 19/5/2011
FENote2: IHEEHBETBEMBEE A
This member withdrew from the A&FC Committee
FNote3: WMEEH20M1MFSA19BBMAITRETBEHEE/NE
This member joined the A&FC Committee since 19/8/2011
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Attendance Record of Community Participation and Publicity Committee (CPPC)
Meetings

ERHFEXE%

Overall attendance was 69%

ERRZT(BEA)
Ms WONG Ka-ling, Garling (Convenor)
2 DEEREGET) v TiEHA TEA TiEA
Mr. Saeed UDDIN, BBS, MH (Note 1) N/A N/A N/A
3 BEARZE(BRIBEA) v v v v
Ms CHOI Hing-shi, MH (Deputy Convenor) (7% Note 2)
4 sREED A (GE1) v N iE NE A E R
Mrs. CHONG WONG Chor-sar, MH, JP (Note 1) N/A N/A N/A
5 LEHEL iE A v v RS
Dr. KOONG May-kay, Maggie N/A (3 Note 3) Abs.
6 BARSEE v R TRJE RE
Mr. LUI Tim-leung, Tim, BBS, JP Abs. Abs. Abs.
S iRt TR ol 0 .
Ms NG Wing-mui, Winnie N/A . ) Abs.
(% Note 4)
\ A
. TNER TR TRJE "
8 Mr. Zaman Minhas QAMAR N/A Abs. Abs. ) N/A
(% Note 5)
9 AEEZE iE A v TRE R
The Hon TSE Wai-chun, Paul N/A (3% Note 4) Abs. Abs.
10 B v R v TR
Dr. TSE Wing-ling, John, MH Abs. Abs.
N Mr. LAM Woon-kwong, GBS, JP v v v 4
RS X (5E6)
12 Ms CHEUNG Kwan-fong (Note 6) v v v v
13 HEMRBRAE(GES) v v TRJE R
Mr. CHONG Chan-yau (Note 6) Abs. Abs.
B ER S ( 6)
1% Mr. CHOW Wing-hong, Alvin (Note 6) v v v v
# Note 1 {EHIZE20114F5 H19B [EiW
Appointment up to 19/5/2011
FENote2: HEH2011EF7A21BRARBEA
Became Deputy Convenor since 21/7/2011
FENote3: H2011F5H20BEATHEERE - WEH201MF7A2IBNMALEL2EREEET/ME
Appointment as an EOC member became effective on 20/5/2011 and joined the CPPC since 21/7/2011
FENoted: UZEBH201MF7A2IAEMANE2EREEEE/VE
This member joined CPPC since 21/7/2011
ENote5: WEZEBFHELEARSEZH/A
This Member withdrew from the CPPC
ENote6: HEEZE

Co-opted Members
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Attendance Record of Legal and Complaints Committee (LCC) Meetings
BREFEXEB69%

Overall attendance was over 69%

._ 18/4/2011 | 18/7/2011 | 22/8/2011 |17/10/2011|19/12/2011| 20/2/2012

FEPEEE(BERA)GET)
Mr. LEE Luen-fai (Convenor) (Note 1)

RHAEEBIBEA)GE) G

2 Mr. Amirali Bakirali NASIR, JP (Deputy V4 7 N Ab 7 v
Convenor) (Note 1) >
REHLT TR TR

J Ms CHAN Man-ki, Maggie Abs. Abs. v v v v

REREDZE(E2) , . . , .
TNEHA TNEH TNEH TNEA TNEA

4 Mrs. CHONG WONG Chor-sar, MH, JP v /A /A WA WA WA
(Note 2)

BARBLLE THRE TR & THRE

. Ms CHOI Hing-shi, MH Abs. v Abs. 4 v Abs.
BREHA A - . . -

. . NE NER NEA NER

6 The Hon FUNG Kin-kee, Frederick, SBS, v \ N/A /A WA /A /A
JP (7 Note 3)

. EEELE TR ram  fmR TR Tam
Ms NG Wing-mui, Winnie 4 . N/A N/A N/A N/A

(5 Note 3)

g WEEWL(GEe) T Y A " A y
Dr. TSANG Kit-man, Sandra (Note 4) N/A Abs. Abs. Abs.

9 WEEZE TR R v R R v
The Hon TSE Wai-chun, Paul Abs. Abs. Abs. Abs.
ELREEGES) TiEA TR TR

10 Mr. YIP Siu-hong, Nelson, MH (Note 4) N/A v Abs. v Abs. v

MRt il
1 MR EAEGET) v v v v v v

Mr. LAM Woon-kwong, GBS, JP (Note 1)

FENote1: MEAEEERBEARTEELEERABEAZ2011F8A21H - MFLIELAERIRIEHR L ER2011F8H22
HESHRBEAKRBIBEA -
Mr. LAM Woon-kwong was the Convenor and Mr. LEE Luen-fai was the Deputy Convenor up to 21/8/2011. Mr. LEE
Luen-fai and Mr. Amirali Bakirali NASIR have been the Convenor and Deputy Convenor respectively since 22/8/2011.
FENote2 : {EHAZE201145 1968 &
Appointment up to 19/5/2011
L Note3: WEEEEEERKRFZEE N
This member withdrew from the LCC
FENoted:  H2011F5A20HEKARTHEEE - WEH2011F7B18HEBMAERRRFER /A
Appointment as an EOC member became effective on 20/5/2011 and joined LCC on 18/7/2011
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BRRMREE NMASENHFETHE
Attendance Record of Policy and Research Committee (PARC) Meetings
B F RiBE83%

Overall attendance was over 83%

._ 12/5/2011 | 14/7/2011 | 8/9/2011 |10/11/2011| 19/1/2012 | 22/3/2012

HBEZE(BEA)
The Hon FUNG Kin-kee, Frederick, SBS,

v

v

v

v

JP (Convenor) Abs Abs
BRBEBL(ABEA) D - . - - .
2 Dr. YEUNG LAW Koon-chui, Agnes, JP v T Tam T T T
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Deputy Convenor) (Note 1)
FoxEEL(E2) 5
3 Dr. TSE Wing-ling, John, MH (Deputy v Abs A YA v v
Convenor) (Note 2) '
e
4 Ms CHAN Ka-mun, Carmen, JP v 4 v v 4 v
5 HERHEGE) TNEM TNEH TNEMA TNERA TEH
Prof. Randy CHIU (Note 1) v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
AEHBL(FE3) TNEA TR
6 Dr. KOONG May-kay, Maggie (Note 3) N/A v v Abs. v v
RIS AL TR
J Mr. Amirali Bakirali NASIR, JP v v v v 4 Abs.
8  Mr. Zaman Minhas QAMAR (i Note 3) Z:,\Z;/EA% v v v v v
BERR XL
2 Ms WONG Ka-ling, Garling v v v v v v
EVRSTEGE3) T HRE ERE
10 i YIP Siu-hong, Nelson, MH (Note 3) /A Abs. Abs. v v v
11 Mr. LAM Woon-kwong, GBS, JP v 4 v v v v
BRERLL(E4) TR
12 Ms CHAN Mei-kit, Maggie (Note 4) v v Abs. v v v
NP2+ (5F 4) R TR
13 Ms LAU Dan-nor, Agnes (Note 4) v v Abs. v 4 Abs.
HEXSTEGES) TR RE
(5 Mr. Behzad MIRZAEI (Note 4) Abs. Abs. 4 v v v
FENote 1: fEHAZE2011F5A198ER
Appointment up to 19/5/2011
FENote2: H201F7A14BRBRAERIBEA
Became Deputy Convenor since 14/7/2011
FENote3: EH20MFSA20HBKNATHESEE - WE2011F7A14BRMABR KARZEE/VE
Appointment as an EOC member became effective on 20/5/2011 and joined the PARC since 14/7/2011
T Noted : HBREE

Co-opted Members
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BREMAEENMEETHNERRTENMEKE
Membership of the Working Group on Access under the Policy and Research Committee

10

11

12

13

14

PRSI
Ms CHAN Ka-mun, Carmen, JP

The Hon. FUNG Kin-kee, Frederick, SBS, JP

KA E T
Dr. TSE Wing-ling, John, MH

wREREA LT
Mrs. CHONG WONG Chor-sar, MH, JP

mREXLT
Ms WONG Ka-ling, Garling

EXEERE
Mr. CHOW Wing-hong, Alvin

BREZ2L+
Ms CHAN Mei-kit, Maggie

Mr. YIP Siu-hong, Nelson, MH

R@RETEGEN)
Mr. MOK Kim Wing (Note A)

SRIEIE A (5 A)

Mr. CHEUNG Kin-fai (Note #)
RABNZE ST A (E A)

Mr. Joseph KWAN Kwok Lok, MH (Note ~)

BTG )
Mr. TSANG Kin Ping (Note #)

THEBRREGEN
Mr. WANG Kai Fung (Note A)

MBS EGEN)
Mr. NG Hang-sau (Note )

& Note " : TR E S
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FTEREZEENSREE /A

(E£2012F3H318)

Management Team of the Equal Opportunities Commission

(as at 31.3.2012)

R

HREE(RBRTH)
REER L

B (REFETH)

ERBE
EwhESEE

BRRAREE
REXIBL

HREMMIEIEE
T+

1 30 Equal Opportunities Commission SFZ M2 ZE &

Chairperson
Mr. LAM Woon-kwong, GBS, JP

Director (Planning & Administration)
Mr. CHAN Yick-man, Michael

Director (Operations)
Mr. LI Siu-kwai, Joseph

Chief Legal Counsel
Mr. POON Lik-hang, Herman

Head, Policy & Research
Dr. CHU Chung-man, Ferrick

Head, Corporate Communications and Training
Ms WONG Shan-nar, Shana
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55{EE R FE Rt e 2 EE B E BN

55 Organisations Funded under the Community Participation Funding

Programme
4 )
m 4% o 13%
B D EEELE
Schools Ethnic minority groups
B 5% B 40%
gl BRASHERE I Eoqth JEBR T #E
Women's groups Service organisations & other NGOs
B 38%
e EEe
Rehabilitation groups
\_ J

B1996/97F 8 - FTHESTFHHETE
BhEt 8l - BB EBUT#E - EE
BEERBRETERSERANEE
I (B 3 KRR R AR 1G5 #9 R Bl K fE
o AFEE  ttE2EE B8 HKE
93fnEFE - 63T EBEME - BB
4 %E E B HKS1,572,5707C - BBHIER
WEABEEE RE RE HLE-
THesh REUETY -

Annual Report 2011/12 &3 1 31

The EOC has provided funding every year since 1996/97 to
encourage NGOs, community groups and schools to initiate
their own projects on the subject of equal opportunities
and promote public understanding of the principles and
applications of the anti-discrimination ordinances. During
2011/12, the Community Participation Funding Programme
attracted 93 applications, of which 63 projects were approved
and HK$1,572,570 allocated. Types of funded programmes
included talks, performances, exhibitions, competitions,
workshops, and production of publications.
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List of Organisations Funded under the Community Participation Funding Programme

2011/12
E R Schools
PAEEMAEEEeHE Caritas Tuen Mun Marden Foundation Secondary School
HFITRE 2248 S B (173 70) Delia Memorial School (Hip Wo)
i®ZE#Women's groups
BEBELRLHE Hong Kong Federation of Women'’s Centres
Mim R The Association for the Advancement of Feminism
RE=ZFIEEE Tung Wah Groups of Hospital CEASE Crisis Centre

{8 EE@ B Rehabilitation groups

BAREEEHNSTFEHIEAFDL Chinese Young Men's Christian Association of Hong Kong Y’s Men'’s Centre
for the Deaf

KEE Fu Hong Society

W EEE B m AR Heep Hong Society Healthy Kids Nursery School
ESSEEHEGEERP L Hong Chi Association Hong Chi Fanling Integrative Rehabilitation Complex
AR EREEERRS Hong Kong Association for Specific Learning Disabilities

BEAEABES Hong Kong Association of the Deaf

BBKBAARES Hong Kong Blind Union

BEEEEEFHEESSEHFTO Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth Jockey Club Activity Centre
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Hong Kong Federation of the Blind

Hong Kong Rehabilitation Power

Hong Kong Sign Language Association

Kwai Chung Hospital Patient Resource and Social Centre
Retina Hong Kong

Richmond Fellowship of Hong Kong

SAHK Jockey Club Bradbury Wah Sum Care Centre

Shek Kip Mei Lutheran Centre for the Blind, Hong Kong Lutheran Social
Service, LC-HKC

The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation
The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation, Community Rehabilitation Network

The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong (JCB Halfway House / Kwun
Tong Amity Centre)

The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council College for Adults with Special
Education Needs (CASEN)

The Society for AIDS Care Limited

BERBINERRA RS
FRERBAGREHE(FER)

&5 B AFAPathyakram Vikas Parishad
(FHR)

FRBTHEARER)
ERmgETE(FE)FER)
AR BBEBEBETLE(FR)
ECEIESUNAE =)

Far East Overseas Nepalese Association
Hong Kong Integrated Nepalese Society

Hong Kong Nepali Pathyakram Vikas Parishad

Mission for Migrant Workers HK Society Limited
Nepalese Construction Workers Union Hong Kong
Union of Nepalese Domestic Workers in Hong Kong

United Filipinos in Hong Kong
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Association for the Rights of Industrial Accident Victims Ltd.

Catholic Diocese of Hong Kong Diocesan Pastoral Centre For Workers (Hong
Kong Island)

Catholic Diocese of Hong Kong Diocesan Pastoral Centre For Workers (NT)

Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong, Uni-Y (HKBU)

Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong Lam Tin Centre

Dialogue in the Dark Hong Kong

Garment Fashion Practitioners Association

H.K.S.K.H. Shatin Children & Youth Integrated Service Centre
H.K.S.K.H. Tuen Mun Integrated Services Jockey Club Youth Express
Hong Kong Children & Youth Services Sing Woo Children and Youth Centre
Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council

Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children

Leo Club of Lion Rock

Rainbow of Hong Kong

Tai Hang Residents’ Welfare Association Tai Hang Youth Centre

The Boys’ and Girls' Clubs Association of Hong Kong Jockey Club Shek Yam
Children and Youth Integrated Services Centre

The Boys’ and Girls" Clubs Association of Hong Kong Jockey Club South Kwai
Chung Children and Youth Integrated Services Centre

The Chinese Rhenish Church Hong Kong Synod, Welfare Department, Choi
Wan Rhenish Integrated Children and Youth Services Centre

The Federation of Hong Kong and Kowloon Labour Unions

The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council Tung Chung Integrated Services
Centre

The Rotary Club of Mid-Level, Hong Kong

Yan Oi Tong Rainbow Community Integrated Development Centre
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Our partners in 2011/12 consisted of different groups and
organisations, including rehabilitation groups, women'’s
groups, ethnic minority groups, schools, other NGOs, and
individuals. Moreover, guests who attended the EOC radio
programme on RTHK Radio 2 and Commercial Radio 1 were
also our valuable partners.

Eight outstanding achievers from different professions were
invited to serve as “Career Challenge” and “Uniquely Me!”
Mentors of the EOC’s youth mentorship programme in
2011/12.

Mr. Jaspal Singh BINDRA
Group Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, Asia, Standard
Chartered Bank

Mr. CHAN Kam-yuen, Allen
Chairperson, Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth

Ms Mary Pandora CHEUNG

Recipient of the Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award /
Managing Director & Founder of Mary Cheung & Associates (Int’l) Ltd /
President of Professional Image And International Etiquette Institute

Ms Prudence MAK
Founder & Creative Director of Chocolate Rain

Mr. Kim MOK, VH

Recipient of the Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award /
Chairman of the Hong Kong Network for the Promotion of Inclusive
Society Ltd / Executive Member of World Blind Union, Asian Pacific Region

Mr. Kenny SO

Outstanding Warriors of Regeneration Society / Pop-song Lyricist /
Registered Social Worker

Ms Kay TSE

Recipient of the Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award /
Popular Singer

Miss Kitty YUEN
Renowned Radio & TV Host
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Ms Bonnie AU
Centre-in-charge of the Chinese Young Men’s Christian Association of
Hong Kong (Hin Keng Centre)

Ms Barbara CHAN

Social Worker of Caritas-Hong Kong, Social Work Services Division

Ms Emily CHAN

Manager of the Information Accessibility Centre, The Hong Kong Society
for the Blind

Ms Fei CHAN

Senior Programme Officer of the AIDS Concern

Mr. Tao CHAN

Service Director of the Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children
(HKSPC)

Ms Mabel CHAU

Chief Executive Officer of the Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation

Mr. CHENG Kai-man

Champion in Photography (Outdoor) Competition in the 8th Hong Kong
Abilympics 2011

Ms Mary Pandora CHEUNG

Recipient of the Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award

Ms CHO ping

Athlete (Wheelchair Fencing) and User of the Hong Kong PHAB
Association Jockey Club PHAB Fitness Centre

Ms Esther CHOI
Programme Director of the Society for AIDS Care

Professor Susanne CHOI Yuk-ping
Director of the Gender Research Centre, Hong Kong Institute of Asia-
Pacific Studies, The Chinese University of Hong Kong

Ms CHOW Miu-sheung
Recipient of the 7th Hong Kong Outstanding Women Volunteers

Mr. CHUNG Wai-shing

Chief Officer of the Mental Health Association of Hong Kong and
Honorary Secretary of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Social
Enterprises Limited

Ms Irene FLANHARDT
Fine art artist

Mr. Kaman FUNG
Course Development Manager of the Employees Retraining Board

Ms Gloria KEUNG Ngan-chi
Manager of the Hong Kong PHAB Association Jockey Club PHAB Fitness
Centre

Ms Joey LAM
Deputy Government Chief Information Officer (Policy and Customer
Service)

Ms Amiee LAU, Ms. Chloe LAU and Ms Rachel WONG
Project-in-charge of “X{£SHA LA LA” organised by the Chinese (YMCA
Young Men'’s Christian Association) of Hong Kong — Uni-Y (HKBU)
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Ms Ella LAU
Director of the Hong Kong Spinal Cord Injury Fund

Ms Maple LAU

Deputy Director (Programmes) of the Hong Kong AIDS Foundation

Mr. Colin LAW

Senior Occupational Therapist of the Castle Peak Hospital

Ms LEE Chak-ching

Experienced volunteer of the Hong Kong AIDS Foundation

Ms Karen LEE

Centre-in-charge of the Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children
(HKSPC)

Dr. Christine LEUNG

Recipient of the Lifefighter Award and Vice Chairperson of the Direction
Association for the Handicapped

Ms Carina LI Shu-shuen
Clinical Psychologist of the Evangelical Lutheran Church of Hong Kong

Ms Godi LI

Fundraising and Communications Manager of the Society For AIDS Care
Mr. Howard LING

Senior Consultant of the Hong Kong Council of Social Service — HSBC
Social Enterprise Business Centre

Ms Si-si LIU

Director of the Hong Kong Federation of Women's Centres

Mr. Jimmy LO
Senior Project Officer of the Hong Kong AIDS Foundation

Ms Prudence MAK
Founder and Creative Director of Chocolate Rain

Ms Wendy MAK
Centre-in-charge of the Chinese Young Men's Christian Association of
Hong Kong Y’s Men’s Centre for the Deaf

Mr. Kim MOK Kim-wing
Member of the Hong Kong Association of the Deaf

Mr. Stanley NG
Executive Director of the Hong Kong Rehabilitation Power

Mr. Anthony PANG
General Manager of the Dialogue in Silence Hong Kong

Mr. Tony SHING
Centre-in-charge of the Hong Kong Federation of the Blind

Mr. Larry SO
Executive Secretary of the Chinese Young Men’s Christian Association of
Hong Kong

Ms Stephanie SO
Service-in-charge of Women Affairs Department of the Hong Kong
Young Women's Christian Association

Ms Tammy SO
Supervisor of Women Affairs Department of the Hong Kong Young
Women's Christian Association

Ms Vivian SUEN
Physiotherapist of the Hong Kong PHAB Association Jockey Club PHAB
Fitness Centre
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Dr. W K SUNG
Chairman of the Committee on Recovery-oriented Services of Castle Peak
Hospital

Ms Janet TAM
Executive Director of the Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong

Ms Fermi WONG
Director of the Hong Kong Unison

Mr. Fritz WONG
Education Officer of the Mental Health Association of Hong Kong

Mr. Stephen WONG
Convenor of the Organising Committee of 2011 Mental Health Month /
Superintendent of the Caritas Jockey Club Lai King Rehabilitation Centre

Mr. Clarence YANG
Social Services Committee Member of the Chinese Young Men'’s Christian
Association of Hong Kong

Mr. Patrick YIP
Project Development Manager of the Hong Kong PHAB Association
Jockey Club PHAB Fitness Centre

a&g Productions

AECOM

AIDS Concern

Anti-480 — Anti Sexual Violence Resource Centre

Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong

Asia Social Innovative Award

Association Concerning Sexual Violence Against Women
Autism Children Foundation

Autism Hong Kong

Autism Recovery Network

Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service

California School

Care and Love Campaign

Caritas Hong Kong

Caritas Integrated Family Service Centre — Fanling

Caritas Jockey Club Lai King Rehabilitation Centre

Caritas Rehabilitation Services and Special Education Services
Caritas Tuen Mun Marden Foundation Secondary School
Census and Statistics Department

Center on Disability Studies, University of Hawaii at Manoa
Chinese Young Men'’s Christian Association of Hong Kong
Chocolate Rain

Christian Action

Christian Action — SHINE Centre
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Christian Action Domestic Helpers and Migrant Workers Programme
City University of Hong Kong

Civic Exchange

Civil Service Training and Development Institute, Civil Service Bureau

Committee on the promotion of the UN Convention of the Rights of
Persons with Disabilities

Community Business
Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau

Constitutionalism Research Institute of China University of Political
Science and Law

Consulate General of the Republic of Indonesia
Crown Motors Limited

Delia Memorial School (Hip Wo)

Department of Health, Red Ribbon Centre
Department of Media and Communication, City University of Hong Kong
Dialogue in Silence Hong Kong

Dialogue in the Dark Hong Kong

Digital Broadcasting Corporation — Digital WE Channel
Direction Association for the Handicapped

Ebenezer School and Home for the Visually Impaired
Employees Retraining Board

Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong

Enlighten Hong Kong Limited

Far East Overseas Nepalese Association

Filipino Migrant Workers Union

Food and Environment Hygiene Department

Friends of Thai

H.K.S.K.H. Lady Maclehose Centre

H.K.S.K.H. Lady Maclehose Centre — Service for Ethnic Minorities
Harmony House

Heep Hong Society

Hong Chi Association

Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts

Hong Kong Air Cargo Terminals Limited

Hong Kong Association for AD / HD

Hong Kong Association of the Deaf

Hong Kong Autism Awareness Alliance

Hong Kong Baptist University

Hong Kong Baptist University’s Centre for Human Resources Strategy and
Development

Hong Kong Blind Sports Association Ltd.
Hong Kong Blind Union

Hong Kong Christian Service

Hong Kong Christian Service — CHEER Centre

Hong Kong Clerical and Professional Employees General Union
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Hong Kong College of Psychiatrists

Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting Co. Ltd.
Hong Kong Confederation of Trade Unions

Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association

Hong Kong Education City

Hong Kong Family Welfare Society

Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth
Hong Kong Federation of the Blind

Hong Kong Federation of Women's Centre

Hong Kong Hospital Authority

Hong Kong Institute of Contemporary Culture
Hong Kong Institute of Directors

Hong Kong Institute of Human Resources Management
Hong Kong Integrated Nepalese Society

Hong Kong Joint Council for People with Disabilities
Hong Kong Monetary Authority

Hong Kong Mucupolysaccharidoses & Rare Genetic Diseases Mutual Aid
Group

Hong Kong PHAB Association

Hong Kong Pride Parade 2011 Committee

Hong Kong Red Cross John F. Kennedy Centre

Hong Kong Rehabilitation Power

Hong Kong Retirement Schemes Association

Hong Kong Shue Yan University

Hong Kong Sign Language Association

Hong Kong Single Parents Association

Hong Kong Social Workers Association

Hong Kong Society of Psychiatrists

Hong Kong Sports Institute

Hong Kong Trade Development Council

Hong Kong Unison

Hong Kong Women Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association
Hong Kong Women'’s Coalition on Equal Opportunities
Housing Department

Information Services Department

International Social Service — Hong Kong Branch HOPE Centre

Internet Professional Association

Islamic Kasim Tuet Memorial College
Islamic Primary School

Jockey Club Early Psychosis Project
Jumbo Kids Theatre

Kowloon Mosque

KELY Support Group

Khalsa Diwan (Sikh Temple) Hong Kong
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Kimberly-Clark Hong Kong

Klick, an Indonesian newspaper

Labour and Welfare Bureau

Labour Department

Ma On Shan Integrated Family Service Centre, Social Welfare Department
Mary Cheung & Association (International) Limited
Mental Health Month Organising Committee
Mission for Migrant Workers HK Society Limited

New Women Arrivals League

Nigerian Union

North District Community Theatre

Octopus Hong Kong

Office of the Government Chief Information Officer
Office of the Ombudsman, Hong Kong

Pakistan Islamic Welfare Union

Philippines Consulate General

Po Kok Primary School

Radio Television Hong Kong

Rehabilitation Alliance Hong Kong

Retina Hong Kong

Scout Association of Hong Kong

Silence

Sir Ellis Kadoorie Secondary School (West Kowloon)
Social Enterprise Summit 2011

Social Ventures Hong Kong

Social Welfare Department

Society of Boys' Centres

St. James’ Settlement

St. John's Cathedral HIV Education Centre

St. Margaret’s Girls” College

St. Mary Canossian College

Standard Chartered Bank

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Limited — Tai Po Mega Mall
Thai Migrant Workers Union

Thai Regional Alliance

Thai Women's Association

The Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong (Hin Keng Centre)
The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong Lam Tin Women'’s Club
The Forthright Caucus

The Gender Research Centre, Hong Kong Institute of Asia-Pacific Studies
of The Chinese University of Hong Kong

The Hong Kong Association of Property Management Companies

The Hong Kong Coalition of Indonesian Migrant Workers Organisation
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

Annual Report 2011/12 8% 141




Bt %
Appendices

AATIEMAR

BRI ATES
BRAEEME
BEREMBE

BEHE BN
BAREEESE
BEESE
BEGRARBKRERAT
ERRI AL

BERBIAS
—ERtENER

— R ENMBERMLEBERMAED L

— Rt 2

BEERS
EEEABEY
EEEARARES
ERERERES

B & O PREBRE LB
T

NEELTRH
EREAE

BEEEY
BALEEEE
EYNGIN-=
TEETEe
REWORIFERE AN EXIR)
N

FERESE

Theatre Noir

IXE5F
BREFEBEANBE(ER)
BEIRB

IR RIS S
RREBEES
BERIREEEL SRS E
PN E =y Y
YouTube

TTAREE DG A LSRR H L

FEESRBAE

'] 42 Equal Opportunities Commission SFZ M2 ZE &

The Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions

The Hong Kong Federation of Women

The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups

The Hong Kong Institute of Architects

The Hong Kong Institute of Education

The Hong Kong Institute of Facility Management

The Hong Kong Jockey Club

The Hong Kong Network for the Promotion of Inclusive Society Limited
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

— Department of Applied Social Sciences

— Centre for Policy Studies, Department of Applied Social Sciences
— School of Design

The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation

The Hong Kong Society for the Blind

The Hong Kong Society for the Deaf

The Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children
The Japanese Society for Rehabilitation of Persons with Disabilities
The Kids on the Block

The Kowloon Motor Bus Co. (1933) Ltd.

The Law Society of Hong Kong

The Lutheran Church Hong Kong Synod

The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong

The Open University of Hong Kong

The Photographic Society of Hong Kong

The SUN (Newspaper in English for Filipino)

The University of Hong Kong

The Women's Foundation

Theatre Noir

Trade and Industry Department

United Filipino in Hong Kong

Vocational Training Council

Women Service Association

Women'’s Commission

Yang Memorial Methodist Social Service Centre

Yau Tsim Mong District Office

YouTube

Yuen Long Town Hall Support Service Centre for Ethnic Minorities

Zonta Club of Kowloon
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19/F, Cityplaza Three, 14 Taikoo Wan Road, Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong
BE Tel: 2511 8211 #81E Website: www.eoc.org.hk

{55 Fax: 2511 8142 B & Email: eoc@eoc.org.hk

YouTubes8i8 YouTube channel : www.youtube.com/user/hkeoc
Facebook® & Facebook pages : www.facebook.com/careerchallenge
www.facebook.com/HKUniquelyMe
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